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N City of Saco -

Finance Office
Beth A. Cote, MBA, Finance Director
Saco City Hall
300 Main Street, Sace, ME 04472

Tel: (207) 282-1032
Fax: (207) 282-8209
Email: beth.cote @ sacomaine.org

March 1, 2010

Honorable Richard L. Michaud, Mayor

and Distingoished Members of the City Council
300 Main Street
Saco, Maine 04072

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Saco, Maine for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009,
is hereby submitted in accordance with the requirements of both our City Charter and state statutes. The
Charter and statutes require that the City of Saco issue annually a report of its financial position and activity,
and that this report be audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the data presented, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the City of Saco. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate
in all material respects and is reported in 2 manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the City of Saco on a government wide and fund basis. All disclosures necessary to enable the
raader (o gain the maximum understanding of the City’s activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is prepared in accordance with Accounting Principles Generally
Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB).

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit
Act of 1984, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governmenis and Non-Profit Organizations. The “Single Audit” is designed to meet the special needs of
federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor
to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s
internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. Information related to this single audit, including
a schedule of federal financial assistance, findings, recommendations and the independent auditor’ s reports on
the internal control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, are included in a separately issued
single audit report.

Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) require that management
provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form
of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Saco, Maine’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.
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Governmental Structure, Local Economic Condition and Gutlook

The City of Saco, Maine, incorporated in 1867, is located at the mouth of the Saco River on the scutherly side
of Saco Bay in the Gulf of Maine, in the southern coastal section of the State and is approximately the tenth
largest city in the State of Maine. The City of Saco continues to be a key area within the state for residential
growth, as well as a key area where industrial and commercial companies are investing. The City of Saco was
ranked among the top five cities within the State of Maine for this growth. Saco has a land area of 38.5 square
miles and an estimated population of 16,822 based on the most recent census. The City is empowered to levya
property tax on both real and personal property located within its boundaries.

The City operates under the Mayor -Council - City Administrator form of government. Policy making and
legislative authority is vested in the seven member City Council. The Council is elected on a non-partisan
basis. The mayor and all council members are elected to two-year terms from seven districts (wards). The City
Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, confirming mayoral
nominations of commitiees and the City Administrator. The City Administrator is responsible for carrying out
the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and for
appeinting the heads of the City’s departments, some with City Council confirmation.

The City of Saco, Maine provides a fuil range of services, including police and fire protection; sanitation
services; the constniction and maintenance of highways, streets and infrastructure; waste water treatment plant;
solid waste collection; public education; health and social welfare; recreation; general administration and
economic development.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Saco’s financial planning and control. All
departments of the City of Saco are required to submit requests for appropriation to the Finance Director in
Janwnary of each year, The (ity’s Finance Director uses these requests as the starting point for developing a
proposed budget. The City Administrator then presents this proposed budget to the City Council for review in
March of each year. The City Council is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt
a final budget by no later than June 30, the close of the City’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared
by fund and department. Both transfers of appropriations within a department and between various
departments require the approval of the governing council. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this
report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annnal budget has been adopted. For
the General Fund, this comparison is presented as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental
funds. '

Major Inifiatives Fiscal Year 2008-2009

After much work, financial planning and commitment to our vision of making Saco a community with a high
quality of life for all its citizens, the City again ends the year in a solid financial position. Central to this vision
1s a sustainable economy that offers an opportunity for everyone to have rewarding employment and for
business to prosper, now and in the future. The peeple of Saco have brought this vision into reality by working
together and building on our tradition of hard work, dedication and ingenuity.

Economic Development. The City has worked for decades to improve the econromic development climate in
Saco, and the proof of those efforts is the steady increase in the City's assessed valuation, which is due to
growth in the industrial and commercial sector, as well as strong residential growth. Notable additions to the
City’s economic development base are due to the City’s continually expanding business parks, which now
includes several new businesses. Some recent projects are a new Amtrak Station and an IMAX 3-D digital
movie theafer.



Assessed Valuation, For the 18% consecutive year, the City’s valuation has steadily increased, with the
exception of fiscal year June 30, 1999, where the valuation slightly decreased due to the State mandated
homestead exemption of approximately $25 million. This exemption reduced the taxable valuation for the
taxpayers of the City but was substituted by a reimbursement {rom the State. Since fiscal year 1991, the
assessed valuation has risen from $729,675,000, to this year’s $2,051,483,000. This equates to a 181%
increase over this 18-year period. However, this increase has not been reflected proportionately between
residential and commercial growth. In 1990, residential property accounted for 68% of the City’s valuation.
This year, residential property taxes will also account for approximately 80% of the taxes paid, while
business/industry will account for 20%.

Financial Management. The City is committed to ensuring sound financial management of public funds.
This includes monitoring goals and objectives through the Strategic Plan, maintaining sufficient fund balances
in major governmental funds, and adhering to the highest management standards. The Strategic plan was last
adopted by the City Council in fiscal year 2006 with the election of our current Council, and will be updated
again in fiscal 2009 after our next election. Geals and objectives are updated annually as part of the budget
process as well as through interpretation of the biennial citizen survey results.

Capital Improvements & Debt Service. The City has prepared a five-year Capital Improvement Plan Policy.
This policy outlines all of the capital assets currently owned by the City, their historical costs, their estimated
useful lives, and their estimated replacement years and costs. With this information, the City will be better able
to plan for replacements which will aid in our budget preparation in future years as we will have a betteridea
of fiscal impacts due to replacement being projected. In the carrent fiscal year, approximately $4,004,393 was
budgeted to fund various capital improvement projects, including numerous capital asset additions and
infrastructure maintenance projects.  The City continues to remain significantly below state mandated
thresholds for allowable debt liability.

Comprehensive Plan. A comprehensive plan for the City’s development was adopted in October of 1999,
This plan sets out development policies and goals for the next decade and is updated frequently. A new
planning process is now underway and will lead to a new Comprehensive Plan in 2010.

Interlocal service efforts with the City of Biddeford and the Town of Old Orchard Beach. Saco,
Biddeford and Old Orchard Beach continue to build among the many services we provide jointly, including the
harbor river patrol efforts, various training efforts for employees, combined purchasing to take advantage of
economies of scale, and combined negotiations of cable franchise agreements, to name just a few. Interlocal
agreements are also in place for fire, police and emergency management services. Joint employees with
neighboring towns cover such areas as recycling and GIS mapping.

Biddeford-Saco-0Old Orchard Beach Transit Committee. The City is a member of the Biddeford-Saco-Old
Orchard Beach Transit Committee which is a jointly governed organization. The Committee has operated a
public mass transit passenger bus service within and between the three municipalities under a voluntary
interlocal agreement since 1977. The City of Saco’s contribution to the committee for the year ended June 30,
2009 was $64,000. The Transit Committee does not meet the definition of a component unit or a joint venture
because there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments.

Major Initiatives - Looking Ahead: 2009-2010 Goals

During the coming year, the City will build upon our past successes. The City will continue to focus its efforts
on economic development, fiscal accountability, expanding Saco’s tax base and reaffirming our commitment to
the public to improve service delivery and enhance the quality of life in our comununity. In March of 2004 the
City completed its first strategic plan. This plan was then updated again in 2006 and 2008. This task began
with the review of each department’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT). This SWOT
analysis was then distilled into the nine strategic goals noted below and presented within the City’s strategic
plan. In additional to the development of the strategic goals, each department was requested to develop
strategic objectives to advance these goals. Each objective contained in this plan is aligned with one or more
of the nine strategic goals. Each of the objectives contains milestones that identify major accomplishments that
will need to be completed to finish the objective.
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A critical piece of this plan is that the time horizon has been expanded to consider financial and resource
capabilities. An objective may span a number of years depending on the goal’s complexity and financing. This
plan will allow the City to track progress on all goals and objectives over time. The intent of this plan is to
provide strategic direction for the management of the City and to align departmental objectives with this
direction. Each year the plan will be reviewed and updated with the Mayor, City Council and staff.

From the use of this strategic plan, performance measurements will be established to provide better operational
accountability. The City is working towards ensuring that services are provided in the most efficient and
effective way. The City is currently formulating a mixture of performance measurements and comparable
statistics between other Maine communities. This will be presented in the form of cutput measures, outcome
measures and efficiency measures for each City department. These measures will be reported in the current
year’s report. In 2004, the City received a $30,000 grant through the National Center for Innovative
Technology to further this effort and to publish a performance information report on this data. The City was
successful at completing its first, second and third pesformance measurement reports and received a national
Certificate of Excellence for Service Efforts and Accomplishments Reporting from the Association of
Governmental Accountants (AGA) for all three of the published reports. This report substantially complied
with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s sixteen suggested criteria for these types of reports. In
the current fiscal year, the City was the first community in the country to publish and disseminate a citizen
centric prototype report through the AGA. This report specifically aimed to communicate financial, budget
and performance information to citizens in a concise user friendly format. At the beginning of fiscal year
2009, the City received another smaller grant award of $5,000 from the National Center for Civic Innovation to
complete the City’s third citizen satisfaction survey. The results of this survey will be included within the
City’s fiscal year 2009 performance measurement report.

The City has linked the achievement of each department’s milestones to the performance based pay system
already in place, which rewards employees for the achievement of these objectives, thus creating a complete
alignment and strategic focus for the entire City. The last integral piece of this process will be to solicit
feedback from the citizen’s within the City of Saco on our progress to assure that our strategic goals and
objectives are aligned with the service needs of our community. Each year they will be revisited for this
parpose an updated based on the feedback received. Both grant awards provided the City with the funding to
pursue further outreach to the citizens of our community.

Strategic Alignment Process
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The following represents the City Council vision statement and the strategic goals within the City’s Strategic
Plan. Strategic goals are general statements of purpose that pertain to how the City achieves its mission and
vision. The strategic goal generally addresses end results rather than specific actions. A goal provides a
framework and direction for City departments to align their objectives and plans to achieve their goals.



Vision — Values — Philosophy - Ethics

The City has three perspective vision statements, which are referred to regularly as a basis for discerning and
justifying appropriate decisions and actions. The first one represents the global perspective of the elected
officials; the second one represents the vision of constituents residing within the City of Saco. This citizen
vision was vetted through a series of citizen focus group meetings; the third one represents the perspective of
the City management in the delivery of City services.

1. City Council Vision: “Our vision is a high quality of life for Saco citizens. Central to this vision is a
sustainable economy that offers an opportunity for everyone to have rewarding employment and for
business to prosper, now and in the future. The people of Saco bring this vision into reality by
working together and building on our tradition of hard work, dedication and ingenuity.”

2. Citizens’ statement that symbolizes the City of Saco: “Saco is a city that provides families of all kinds
with a community that values its heritage, cherishes its environment, balances its growth, and offersa
concerned and caring spirit”.

3. Staff’s statement of vision for the City: “To Enhance Our Community through Exceptional Service”.

Strategic Goals
Downtown Revitalization

The City recognizes the downtown’s significance as the economic and community center. The City
will confinue to promote the revitalization of the downtown and will support groups like Saco Spirit.

Infrastructure and Capital Development and Maintenance
The City is commitied to maintaining and improving the City’s infrastructure, facilities, and
equipment by maintaining the existing infrastructure and planning for future needs.

Growth Managenent
The City will encourage sustainable growth and development in appropriate areas while protecting
natural resources and rural character, in order to maximize the efficient use of municipal services.

Environmental Protection and Sustainable Development
%= The City will protect the environment and natural resources, and will employ the concept of
Y=Y sustainability in order to enhance the well being of future generations.

Technological Innovation and Implementation
B&  The City will develop and implement technologies to improve services.

BTN

Human Resource Investment
3. The City recognizes that employees are a valuable resource that requires investment to ensure that
staff will attain the knowledge, skills, and abilities necessary to meet community needs.

Leisure Services Investment
The City understands the need for recreational and cultural opportunities for its citizens’ and will
continue to explore, upgrade, and develop new outlets 10 meet these needs.

Meeting the Financial Needs for City Services
iael The City will support and adequately plan for the [inancial needs of the community.
< : . .




Strategic Goals, continued

Public Safety
& The City will provide a safe environment for its citizens and visitors.

The City will endeavor to provide safe, reliable and unfettered movement of people and freight
through the City.

Significant Accomplishments of Fiscal Year 2008-2009

“t
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The City completed construction of the Saco Transportation Center which opened in February 2009.

» The City developed a Senior Citizen Tax Work-off Program where seniors who meet income
eligibility guidelines can earn a property tax abatement of up to $750, This is the first program of its
kind implemented in the State of Maine.

» The City expanded Parks & Recreation programming for children, adults and seniors in its newly

renovated Community Center.
> The City completed its fifth Performance Measurement Report and received its fifth National Award
for Excellence from the Association of Governmental Accountants (AGA). As this is the fifth
consecutive year that the City of Saco has received an SEA award, the City became the second
governmental entity nationwide to receive a Circle of Excellence award.
Five acres of new athletic fields in the Saco Recreation Complex located on the Foss Road (Phase 2:
Sandy Brook) came on line for the spring season of 2009.

v
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> The City continues to utilize windmills at the Waste Water Treatment Plant and Transportation Center.

» The City awarded the contract for a new Waste Water Treatment Plant to be constructed in 2009-2010.

» Public Works and other emergency personnel continue the City-wide effort to restore the infrastructure
of the community and that of residents after damage were incurred from the April 2008 Patriot’s Day
storm, the Angust 2008 storm, and the December 2008 ice storm.

» The City received the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for the sixth time, awarded by the
Government Finance Officer’s Association for their fiscal year 2009 budget.

» The City completed a working draft of the Baldrige award report to be submitted in fiscal 2010.

»  As aresult of Public Law 2007, Chapter 240, known as the “School Consolidation laws’ the Saco
School Department began transition planning for the future consolidated Regional School Unit #23.
RSU #23 consists of Saco, Dayton and Old Orchard Beach Schools as of July 1, 2009. Referendum
budget votes were held in the Spring of 2009,

»  The Saco Police Department introduced their first K9 unit in a decade, as well as a summer bicycle
patrol function to increase their effectiveness.

»  The Saco PD also initiated a Challenge Coin program {o recognize citizens for extraordinary acts on
behalf of their fellow citizens.

» The City completed due diligence on the new Central Fire Station site.

» The City completed a rewrite of the Saco Bay Marina Code.

Financial Information

The City’s Finance Department is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemnal controls designed to
ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that the adequate
accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The internal controls being used are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that the costs of control procedures are weighed against the expected benefits to be
derived, and that the evaluation of costs and benefits requires educated estimates and professional judgments
by management. All of the City’s internal accounting control evaluations occur within this framework.

6



As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the City 1s also responsible for ensuring that
adequate internal controls are in place to ensure and document compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to these programs. These internal controls are subject to periodic evaluations by the
management and finance department staff of the City.

The City adopts fiscal year budgets that are established in accordance with the various laws that govern the
City’s operations as authorized by the Council. Per City Charter the legal level of budgetary control is at the
department level. This means that management cannot overspend departmental budgets without the approval
of the governing body. The budget is divided into monthly budget allocations based on expenditure
expectations and on historical trends, whenever possible. These allocations are reviewed quarterly against
actual expenditares, and variances are addressed in the quarterly financial reports presented to the City
Council. At mid year, unless conditions dictate an earlier need, budgets are reviewed, year end projections are
made, and adjustments to the financial plan considered and any necessary changes are legally adopted through
the passage of an appropriation resolve.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this repost, the City
comHinties to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Cash Manuagemenr Policies and Practices: The City’s investment policy authorizes investments in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, repurchase agreements, certain corporate bonds, certain
certificates of deposit and certain money market funds.

The City’s investment policy was last updated on June 20, 2003, however it is reviewed annually. The City’s
policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio.
Accordingly, the majority of investments were held in the government’s name by the counterparty financial
institution’s trust department. Remaining deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or
collateralized. ‘

Risk Management: During fiscal year 2009, the City continued to aggressively manage all aspects of its risk
management program. Included in the risk management program are property and casualty risks, as weil as
Worker’s Compensation. The City’s Finance Director is the person primarily responsible for most risk
management functions. Insurance coverage, reporting and claims management functions have been
centralized, providing better coordination, efficiency and cost effectiveness. The City recently conducted a
review of its coverages and loss prevention programs. Additional information on the City of Saco’s risk
management activity can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.

Other information:

Independent Audii: State Statute and the City Charter require an annual audit of all financial records by
independent certified public accountants. The andit of fiscal year 2009 was performed for the City Council, by
the firm of Runyon, Kersteen, Ouellette PA, a firm of licensed Certified Public Accountants. The goal of the
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Saco, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles nsed and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit that there was a reasonable
basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Saco’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2009, are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section
of this report. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to
meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 and the related U.S. Office of Management and
Budget's Circular A-133, Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America and the
standards set forth in the General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards were used by the
auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditor’s reports on internal controls and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations can be found in a separately issued report,
7



Awards: The City of Saco received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for a total of seven
years. The City’s budget document is judged for proficiency in several categories, including as a policy
document, a financial plan, an operations guide and a communications device. Lastly, the City was recognized
for performance reporting excellence by receiving the Association of Governmental Accountants’ (AGA)
national Certificate of Excellence in Service Efforts and Accomplishments (SEA) award. As this was the fifth
consecutive year that the City of Saco received an SEA award, the City became the second governmental entity
nationwide to receive the Circle of Excellence Award from the AGA.

Acknowledgemenis: The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the cooperation of
all City department heads, as well as the members of the Finance Department. Appreciation is also extended to
the City Administrator, Richard Michaud, for his consistent support of these efforts. Credit must also be
extended to the Mayor and the governing City Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest
standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Saco, Maine’s finances. I wish to acknowledge
the efforts of our independent auditor’s Runyon Kersteen Ouellette PA, for the professional audit work they
provided and for all their assistance.

Respectfully subritted,

Beth A. Cote. MBA
Finance Director
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Independent Auditor's Report

City Council
City of Saco, Maine:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Saco, Maine as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Saco,
Maine’s management., Our respensrbﬁliy is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our andit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes exanuning, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Saco, Maine, as of June 30, 2009, and
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis, modified approach for City infrastructure capital assets, and
the schedule of funding progress for Other Postemployment Benefits, as listed in the table of contents, is
not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain
Hmited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

QOur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Saco, Maine’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual fund {inancial statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.



City Council
Page 2

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 3, 2010 on
our consideration of the City of Saco, Maine’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Z%& Kerre Oreattinee

May 3, 2010
South Portland, Maine
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CITY OF 5ACO, MAINE
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

As management of the City of Saco, Maine, we offer readers of the City of Saco, Maine’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Saco for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.
We encourage readers to censider the information presented in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, the basic financial statements and the accompanying nofes to those financial
statements.

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Saco, Maine (the City) using the
integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statement No, 34,

The Government-wide Financial Statements present the financial picture of the City from the economic resources
measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They present governmental activities and business-type
activities separately. These statements include all assets of the City (including infrastructure) as well as all labilities
(including long-term debt). Additionally, certain eliminations have occuired as prescribed by the statement in regards
to interfund activity, payables and receivables.

The Fund Financial Statements include statements for each of the three categories of activities — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary. The governmental activities are prepared using the current financial resources measurement
focus and modified accrual hasis of accounting. The proprietary funds are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The fiduciary activities are agency funds, which only reporta
balance sheet and do not have a measurement focus, Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements (o the
Government-wide Financial Statements is provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach.

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its
activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities of the City using the accrual basis of accounting, which is
stmilar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s nef assets and changes in them. Net assets are the difference between assets and
liabilities, which is one way to measure the City’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases and
decreases in the City’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other
factors to consider are changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activifies, we separate the City Activities as follows:

Governmental Activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in this category, including the
General Government, Fire, Police, Public Works, Planning and Economic Development, Parks and Recreation,
Community Services and Library. Property taxes, user fees, interest income, franchise fees and state and
federal grants finance these activities.

Business-type Activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover all or most of the cost of certain
services it provides. The City's Waste Water Treatment Plant activities are reported in this category.



CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2009

REPORTING THE CITY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City as a whole.
Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, management establishes
many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants or other money.

Governmental Funds- Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed shorter-term
view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information
helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
City’s programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to those in the Government-
wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each Governmental Fund financial statement.

Fiduciary Funds - The City is the fiduciary for the school activity funds. The City excludes this activity from its other
financial statements as the City can not use these assets to fund operations,

Proprietary Funds - When the City charges customers for services it provides- whether to outside customers or to
other units of the City- these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the
same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Staternent of Activities. In fact, the
City’s enferprise fund is the same as the business-type activity we report in the government-wide statements but provide
more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The City is providing condensed financial information for fiscal year 2009 with comparative information for fiscal year
2008. Our analysis below focuses on the net assets of the City’s governmental and business-type activities.

2009 2009 2009 Total 2008 2608 2008 Total
Governmental  Business-type Primary Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Governrnent

Current and other assets $ 10,826,801 § 982,816 $ 11,809,617 § 10,297.098 § 4,578,058 % 14,875,156
Capital assels 55,612,378 18,613,079 74,225 457 53,574,871 18,664,267 72,239,138

Total assefs 66,439,179 19,593,895 86,035,074 63,871,969 23,242,325 87,114204
Noa-cugrent liahilities 18,480,719 1,718,133 20,198,852 20,089,475 2,058,957 22,148,432
Other Habilities 3,685,037 231,657 4,220,694 992,606 2,981,176 3,973,782

Tatal liabilities 22,469,756 1,549,790 24 419 546 21,082,081 5,040,133 26,122,214
Net assets:

Tnvested in capital assels 38,579,789 16,983,079 55,562,868 34,636,209 16,689,267 51,325,476

Restricted 948,220 - 948,220 401,399 - 401,399

Unrestricted 4,441,414 663,026 5,104,440 7,152,280 1,512,925 9,265,205
Tolal net assets $§ 43,969,423 $ 17,646,105 $ 61,615,528 $ 42,789,888 § 18,202,192 $ 60,992,080
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2609

Our next analysis focuses on changes in net assets of the City’s governmental and business-type activities.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

2409 2009 2069 Total 2008 2408 2008 Total
Governmental  Business-iype Primary Governmental  Business-fype Primary
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services S 3627188 § 1,739,381 8§ 5,366,569 § 3,326,547 $ 2218457 $ 35545004
Operating grants and contributions 14,551,110 - 14,551,110 13,769.031 - 13,769,031
Capital grants and contributions 816,653 - 816,653 300,820 200,820
General Reveaues:
Property taxes 27,822,609 - 27,822 609 36,612,756 - 26,612,796
Motor vehicle excise taxes 2,684,427 2,684,427 2,854,280 - 2,834 280
Franchise foes 273215 273,215 235,112 - 31112
Homestead exemption 350,300 - 330,300 337,226 - 337229
Other state sid 116,628 - 116,625 34,497 - 34457
State revenue sharing 1,444 817 - 1,444,817 1,510,442 - 1,510,442
Incestment carnings 170,515 18,054 208,569 271,998 $9,842 361,840
Miscellaneous revenues {106,471) 8,733 (97,738) 386,390 4,734 391,124
Total revenues 51,752,891 1,786,168 53,539,159 49 635,142 2,313,633 51,948,175
Program Expenses:
Ceneral government 2,783,447 - 2,783,447 2,388,385 -
Public ss 3,667,340 - 5,667,340 5401015 -
i 4399733 - 4,399,733 4.260,642 -
232,512 - 232512 256,359 -

il 1,008,761 - 1,008,761 915,311 - )
Education 30,028,189 - 30,038,189 29.015,189 - 29.015,189%
Unclassified 4,407,838 - 4,407,838 3,878,748 - 3,878,749
Interest on debt 1,078,518 - 1,078,510 503092 - 992992
Capital improvements - - - 788,291 - 788,291
Waste water treatment plant - 2,342,255 2,342,255 - 2,263,113 2,265,113

Total expenses 49,616,330 2,342,255 51,958,585 48,007.133 2,265,113 30,272,246
Change i1 net assets before transfer 2,136,661 (556,087) 1,586,574 1,628,069 47,920 1,675,929

Trangfers - - - - - -
Change tn net assets after nansfers s 2,136,661 % (536087y § 1,580,574 § 1628009 $ 47920 § 1675929

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The cost of all Governmental activities this year was $49,616,330. However, as shown in the Statement of Activities,
the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through City property taxes was only $27,822,609
because some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs ($3,627,188), or by other
governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with operating granis and contributions (14,551,110}
and capital grants and contributions ($816,653). Overall, the City’s governmental program revenues, including
intergovernmental aid and fees for services, were $18,994,951. The City paid for the remaining “public benefit” portion
of governmental activities with $32,758,040 in taxes and with other revenues, such as interest, State Revenue Sharing,
general contributions and other miscellaneous revenues,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

June 30, 2009

The City’s programs include General Government, Public Safety, Public Works, Housing Programs, Culture and
Recreation, Education, Unclassified, Interest on debt, and Capital Improvements. Bach program’s net cost (total cost
less revenues generated by the activities) is presented below for both the current year (2009) and last year (2008} for
comparative purposes. The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers hy each of these

functions.

Governmental activities: 2009 Net (Expense) 2008 Net (Expense)
General Government S (1,815,078) $ (1,535,074)
Public Safety (4,537,485) (4,816,034)
Public Works (3,551,730) (3,825,419)
Housing Programs 14,318 29,705
Culture and Recreation (376,208) (382,377)
Education (14,873,035) (14,432,647
Unclassified (4,407,838) (3.878.749)
Interest on debt (1,078,510) (993,992)
Capital Improvements 4,187 (776,148)

Total goveramental activities $  (30,621,379) $  (30,610,735)

Total resources available during the year to finance governmental operations were $93,585,753 consisting of restated
net assets at July 1, 2008 of $41,832,762, program revenues of $18,994,951 and General revenues of $32,758,040.
Total Governmental Activities during the year were $49,616,330; thus Net Assets were increased by $2,136,661 to

$43,969,423,
2009 Governmental Activities Revenues
2%
T
B Property taxes Motor vehicle excise taxes ;
EIHomestead exemption [ State revenue sharing
B Investment earnings All other revenue '
B Chargss for services 0 Operating granis and contributions |
B Capital grants and contributions l

The largest factors in this increase were operating grants and contributions, as well as a property tax increase.
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2009 Governmental Program Expenses
9% 2% 0% gy

'Y

1%

' General Government Public Safety 0 Public Works
j O Housing Programs 8 Culture and Recreation Education i
! Unclassified Ointerest on Debt B Capital Improvementis |

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES

The cost of all Proprietary (Business-type) activities this year was $2,342,255. As shown in the Staternent of Activities,
the amounts paid by users of the system was 51,739,381, Investments earnings were $38,054, miscellaneous revenues
were $8,733.

The Proprietary Fund (Business-type) Activities include only the operation of the City’s Waste Water Treatment Plant.
The activities net revenues (total cost less revenues generated by the activities) is ($602,874) as revenues were less than
expendifures,

Total resources available during the year to finance Proprietary Fund (Business-type) Activities were $19,988,360
consisting of Net Assets at July 1, 2008 of $18,202,192, program revenues of $1,739,381, general revenues of $46,787.

Total Proprietary Fund (Business-type) expenses during the year were $2,342,255; thus Net Assets were decreased by
($556,087) to $17,646,105.

2009 Business-type Activities Revenue
2%~ 0%

‘ Charges for services Investment earnings CMiscellanecus revenues

This decrease in net assets is due primarily to sewer user fees collected being lower than its projection for the vear, as
well as unrestricied investment eamings coming in lower than projections.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2069

THE CITY’S FUNDS

The following is an analysis of balances in the City's major individual funds. Comparative information is being
provided for fiscal year 2008.

General Major Governmental Functions - The information below compares revenues of the General Fund for
2009 and 2008, respectively.

2609 2008
Revenues by source

Taxes $30,278,683 § 29,258,042
Licenses and permits 770,778 697,994
Intergovernmental 15,235,297 14,886,952
Charges for services 968,773 775,330
Other revenues 422,129 334,345

Total revenues $47,675,660 5 45,932,663

In fiscal year 2009, the City also had two other major funds. The Mill Brook Industrial Park Fund, which had no
revenues in fiscal year 2009 or 2008, and the Saco Island TIF District, which had no revenues in fiscal year 2009 and
other revenues of $500,001 in fiscal year 2008.

2009 General Fund Revenues by source

63%

B Propenty taxes Bijcenses and pammits  CHntergovemmental 5

I
g Ll1Charges for services B Other revenues
i

The information below compares expenditures of the General Fund for 2009 and 2008, respectively.

2009 2008
Expenditures by function

General government » $2,270911 § 2,167,619
Public safety 5,417,894 5,081,794
Public works 4,585,463 4,371,335
Culture and recreation 1,078,275 879,544
Education 28,045,287 26,928,154
County tax 1,020,912 938,270
Unclassified 3,284,077 2,853,683
Debt service 2,685,555 2,391,037
Capital improvements 1,480,882 4,117,439

Total expenditures $49.876,256 § 49,748,875

In fiscal year 2009 and 2008, the Mili Brook Industrial Park Fund had no expenditures. In fiscal year 2009 and 2008,
the Saco Island TIF Fund had expenditures of $979,132 and $1,892,978, respectively.
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2009 General Fund Expenditures by Function

79, 5% 3% 5% 11%
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Proprietary Fund

The City’s only major Enterprise Fund consists of the Waste Water Treatment Plant. The basic financial statements for
the major funds are included in this report. Because the focus on proprietary funds is a cost of service measurement or
capital maintenance, we have included this fund in the table below, which demonstrates return on ending assets and
return on ending net assets.

2009 2008
Total Assets $19,595,895 $23,242 325
Net Assets 17,640,105 18,202,192
Change in Net Assets (556,087) 47,920
Return on Ending Total Assets (2.84%) 0.21%
Return on Ending Net Assets (3.15%) 0.26%

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Debt, considered a liability of governmental activities, decreased in fiscal year 2009 by $1,906,073. Debt, considered
a liability of business-type activities, decreased in fiscal year 2009 by $345,000. Per capita bonded debt outstanding
decreased from $1,243 to $1,109 per capita compared to the prior fiscal year. For a more detailed disclosure on debt,
see footnote 6.

The Governmental Activity and Business-type Activity debt summary for fiscal year 2009 is presented below.

Governemnial Business-type
Activities Activities
Debt Payable at June 30, 2008 $ 18,938,662 $ 1,575,000
Add: New Capital 1.ease Purchases 705,775 -
19,644,437 1,975,000
Less: Debt Retired 2,611,848 345,000
Debt Payable at June 30, 2009 % 17,032,589 $ 1,630,000

This debt payable does not include the long-term portion of compensated absences of $1,212,013 for governmental
activities and $88,133 for business-type activities (See Note 5).
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CAPITAL ASSETS

The capital assets of the City are those assets, which are used in the performance of the City’s functions including
infrastructure assefs. At June 30, 2009, net capital assets of the governmental activities totaled $55,612,378 and the net
capital assets of the business-type activities totaled $18,613,079. Depreciation on capital assets is recognized in the
Government-wide financial statements.

The City has elected to use the “Modified Approach™ as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure
reporting. Under GASB Statemnent No. 34, eligible infrastructure capital assets are not required to be depreciated under
the following requirements:

# The City manages the eligible infrastructure capital assets using an asset management system with
characteristics of (1} an up-to-date inventory; (2) perform condition assessments and summarize the
results using a measurement scale; and (3) estimate annnal amount to maintain and preserve at the
established condition assessment fevel.

» The City documents that the eligible infrastructure capital assets are being preserved approximately at
or above the established and disclosed condition assessment level.

The City’s streets are constantly deteriorating resulting from the following four factors: (1) traffic using the streets; (2)
the sun’s ultra-violet rays drying cut and breaking down the top layer of pavement; (3) utility company/private
development interests trenching operations; and (4) water damage from natural precipitation and other urban ronoff.
The City is continuously taking actions to arrest the deterioration through short-term maintenance activities such as
pothole patching, street sweeping, and sidewalk repair.

The City expended $175,997 on street maintenance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. These expenditures
delaved deterioration; however, the overall condition of the streets was not improved through these maintenance
expenditures. The City has estimated that the amount of annual expenditures required to maintain the City’s streets at
the minimum PCI rating of 70 (rating of 2 within City’s Asset Management System, See Required Supplemental
Information) through the year 2009 was a minimum of $500,000.

The City is also continuously taking actions to arrest the deterioration of other infrastructure assets through short-term
maintenance activities. The City expended $182,000 on other infrastiucture maintenance for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2009. These expenditures delayed deterioration and improved the overall condition through these maintenance
expenditures. The City had estimated that the amount of annual expenditures required to maintain the City’s
infrastructure at the minimum rating of 2 through the year 2009 was a minimum of $500,000.
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Infrastructure Assets - June 30, 2609 and 2008

Net Net
Deseription Cost 2009 Cosi 2008
Governmental Activities:
Modified Approach:
Catch basins and manheles i 2,308,565 $ 2,294,508
Storm drainage 17,839,360 17,839,038
Sidewalks 1,630,130 1,578,296
Street Pavement System 9,612,331 8,578,587
Traffic signals 795,155 793,155
Street signs 44,818 44818
Land 5,178,042 5,178,042
Construction in Progress 263,287 1,983,763
Total Governmental Activities $ 37671628 § 38,292,207
Business-type Activities:
Sewer pipe 14,918,272 14,018,272
Construction in Progress 266,474 -
Total Business-type Activities $ 15,184,746 3 14,918,272
Capital Assets
Balance Balance
July 1, 2003 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
Governmental Activities:
Buildings and Improvements $ 34,583,190 $ 3,470,544 $ - $ 38,053,734
Vehicles 7,079,204 505,573 {172,888) 7,411,889
Machinery and Equipment 5,648,893 276,630 - 5,925,523
Tota 47,311,287 4,252,747 (172,888) 51,391,146
Accumuiated Depreciation (32,028,623} (1,594,661) 172,888 (33,450,356)
Total Governmental Activities $ 15,282,664 5 2,658,086 $ - $ 17,940,750
Business-type Activities:
Buildings and Improvements 14,775,600 - 14,775,600
Vehicles 120,687 - - 120,687
Machinery and Fquipment 2,748,281 187,446 - 2,935,727
Total 17,644,568 187,446 - 17.832.014
Accumulated Depreciation {13,898,573) (505,108) - (14,403,681)
Total Business-type Activities 3 3,745,995 $ (317,662 - S 3,428,333
Total Capital and Infrastructure $ 72,239,137 $ 1,986,320 3 74,225,457

For more detail on capifal assets, see footnote 4.
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BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

General Fund Budget Variances

Comparing the fiscal year 2008-2009 original budget (or adopted) General Fund amount of $48,662,928, (expenditures
of $47,999,700, plus transfers of $663,229), to the final budget amount of $48,809,440 (expenditures of $48,146,211

plus transfers of $663,229) shows a change of $146,511 from the original budget.

Included in this figure is $146,511 of prior fiscal year 2007-2008 Capital Improvement Projects (CIPs) approved to
carry forward into FY 2008-2009, thereby, bringing the beginning balance of $48,662,929 to 548.809,440.

Original Budget + Continuing Appropriations = Beginning Balance
$48,662.929 $146,511 348,809,440
Beginning Balance +/- Supplemental Changes = Final Budget
$48,809.440 - $48,809,440

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Annual Budget assures the efficient, effective and economic uses of City’s resonrces, as well as, establishing that
the highest priority objectives are accomplished. Through the budget, the City Council sets the direction of the City,
allocates its resources and establishes its priorities.

Historical Trend

As the City enters fiscal year 2010, we are in solid financial shape with a keen eye on the undesignated fund balance.
This has laid the foundation for past budgets and will continue to be prudently maintained as we move forward into the
future.

In reflecting back on the history of the City’s past five budgets, non-tax revenues have remained steadily at
approximately $20 million annually. During this time span, the City has been able to stabilize the tax rate with
consistent increases in property valuations.

2006 2067 2008 2009 2016
Total taxes $ 23,157,235  $24.318424 $26,574,151  $ 27,530,902 $ 28,197,854
Percent change (.84%) 5.01% 9.28% 3.60% 2.42%

Total City valuation  $1,792,587,120 $1,929,962,500 $1,995,056,400 $2,051,483,000 $2,070,327,600
The Budget

It is important to note that the City of Saco’s Adopted Budget for fiscal year 2010 encompasses all municipal
expenditures, as well as County and Regional School Unit #23 tax assessments. In prior years the School expenditures
and revenues were reflected in the City’s budget, however, with the formation of the RSU, the City budget only reflects
the tax assessment in budgeted expenditures. All other school-related revenues and expenditures were approved via
referendum vote and are reflected in the separately issued RSU #23 financial statements. Thus, the fiscal 2010 adopted
budget calls for total expenditures of $37,462,978, representing $20,213,945 in municipal expenditures, $1,020,912in
county fax, and $16,228,121 in taxes raised on behalf of the RSU.
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The original budget requests from the twelve individual departments were based on the department head’s perceived
needs. The following adjustments were made after a careful review by the City Administrator and then the City

Council:

City Administrator Net Approved

City Budget Recommendation Change Budget
Operating Budget 3 18,682,029 § (29,324) 3 18,652,705
Capital Outlay 1,089,787 (943,787 146,000
Total 19,771,816 (973,111 18,798,705
Overlay & TIF Transfers 1,415,240 - 1,415,240
Total Expenditure Budget 3 21,187,056 % {573,111y § 20,213,645

BRSU Board NMet Approved
RSV (Schoeol) Budget Recommendation Change Budget
Education $ 15,781,953  § 446,168 $ 16,228,121

Esiimated Net Actual
County Tax County Tax Change County Tax
County Tax $ 1,020,912 % - $ 1,020,912
TOTAL BUDGEYT $ 37,989,921 % (526,943) § 37,462,978

The following chart compares the major categories in the operational budget and their respective increases over the
last five years, without the overlay and TTF transfer or any affects of encumbrances.

Appropriation Summary

2006 2007 2008 2009 2016

Departmenty Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget
Legislative $ 20,260 % 19,533 % 17,086 $ 17,041 $ 20,600
City Administration 197,604 210,383 237,494 268,785 265,426
Finance/Technology 641,454 791,568 706,351 707,864 745,122
City Clerk 183,840 195,956 194,091 245,116 252,445
Assessor 163,684 176,657 165,581 164,131 182,697
Building Maintenance 102,933 102,021 109,624 114,638 105,524
Legal 209,581 359,632 179,119 203,838 115,000
Police Department 2,587,170 2,832,247 2,978,010 3,108,630 3,214,803
Fire/Ambulance 1,903,977 2,059,283 2,103,784 2,309,264 2,608,879
Building Inspections/Zoning 217,803 234,563 233,969 246,835 250,947
Planning & Economic Dev, 248,308 265,936 324,304 302,663 208,389
Public Works 3,757,464 4,208,601 4,371,335 4,589,463 4,431,581
Public Agencies 502,298 492,381 317,504 521,868 563,696
Emergency Management - - - 6,527 5,800
Parks & Recreation 638.353 786,248 879,544 1,071,275 082,452
Debt Service 2,319,715 2,284,899 2,391,037 2,605,555 1,812,892
Employee Benefits 2,192,445 2,254,631 2,024,197 2,463,817 2,527,688
[nsurances 225,558 239,081 229,968 180,352 179,425
Contingency 99,066 150,794 82,014 111,513 89,239
Education K-12 22,838,383 24,292,685 25,097,576 26,149,449 16,228,121
York County Tax 859,723 896,282 958,270 1,020,912 1,020,912
Capital Improvement Projects 1,269,378 1,200,204 3,773,960 775,107 146,000
Overlay - - - - 752,011
TIF Transfers 597,801 591,530 591,265 681,373 663,229

TOTAL $ 41,776,798 $ 44,645115 § 48,166,083 § 47956016 $ 37,462,978
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Revenues/Surplus

The amount budgeted for revenues shows a sharp decrease in fiscal 2010 due to the Saco School Department non-tax
revenues being excluded from this calculation. Educational non-tax revenues are recognized by Regional School Unit
#23 and are audited separately as part of the RSU #23 financial statements. It is worth noting that there has been a
great deal of fluctuation in non-tax revenue over the past 5 years. A high of 10.85% was noted in 2007, and a decrease
is reflected in the fiscal 2010 on the municipal budget as a result of the current economic recession. City management
and the City Council are diligent in ensuring that the budget and forecasts are cognizant of the impact on the budgeted
utilization of prior year undesignated fund balance. In the current and prior year, we have experienced revenue
estimates nearing and, at times, not meeting expectations. Budgeted expenditures have been appropriately reduced to
reflect anticipated losses in fiscal 2010. Further, the City Council determined that there would not be a property tax
increase in fiscal 2010 in order to fund the capital improvements program. Rather, the Council approved a $2.3 million
proposed bond which is on the ballot for November 2009. This bond would cover deficiencies in the prior and current
budget, as well as the absence of a capital program in fiscal 2010.

2606 2607 2008 2609 2010
Non-tax revenues  $ 18,953,559 § 21,010,042 $ 19,796,620 $ 21,132,025 § 9,265,125
Percent change 9.68% 10.85% -3.80% 6.70% -56.16%

However, the City is very aware of the need to guard against a downturn in the economy, resulting in diminishing
revenues and will continue to retain a fund balance fevel within the policy guidelines.

Muajor Increases

Although there were no significant increases in the municipal operational budget, one significant deficiency identified
in the most recent citizen survey was addressed. In the fiscal 2010 budget there was an additional sidewalk plow lease-
purchased in order to address citizen concerns regarding the safety of school children. The only major increase in the
City-wide budgeted expenditures was an increase of $446,168 in educational expenditures voted through in the
Regional School Unit #23 referendum this Spring. The RSU will issue separate financial statements for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2009 as they began operations on July 1, 2009, It is important to note that the fiscal 2010 reflected
reduced revenue estimates based on forecasts on decreasing State revenue sharing, declining excise revenues and a
decrease in other intergovernmental revenue. The City remains diligent about tracking fund balance to ensure we
remain in compliance with the Council’s adopted fiscal policies.

Savings/Increased Demands

The City’s department head’s are always looking for ways to save the City money, whether through increased
efficiencies or through the attainment of federal and state grants. The City is participating in a number of activities
related to increased efficiencies between various City departments as well as with other communities in our southern
Maine arca. Many departments are meeting regularty with their counter parts in other communities to explore the
possibilities of combining resources to deliver services.

The fiscal year 2010 budget also includes revenue amounts for specific state and federal grants that have been applied
for. There are also several other grant awards that will surface during the course of the fiscal year that were not known
af the time of the budget process. These awards will be brought to the City Council for consideration upon being
awarded and additional funding will be requested at that time, to fund any local match requirements above that
originally budgeted.



CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2009

The Future

In terms of the future, we are in good financial shape at this time. However, we need to be alert to the public benefit
versus the costs of the services we provide. In short, as the budget better reflects actual revenues, and as we move into
the future, we need to be careful of our spending so that we do not find ourselves in the position of expenditures
outpacing revenues.

What is at stake for the City of Saco officials can be summed up in one word: effectiveness. Major challenges are
facing us as we enter this new year with infrastructure and capital maintenance needs being reduced to enable the
funding of operational needs of the City. Officials need to be cognizant of the need to preserve the City’s most valuable
assets as large deferioration can very often increase the amount ultimately spent in order to briag them back to
acceptable and safe condition levels. A small portion of these road maintenance needs were addressed with the
November 2006 roads bond. A similar bond package will be put forth to the voters in November 2009, as there was no
capital program included in the fiscal 2010 municipal budget.

To that end, it is especially important that the City Council maintain and update regularly its comprehensive plan, goals
and strategic plan, based upon guidance from appointed and elected officials as well as significant citizen involvement.
These processes are already in place and underway with the mailing of citizen custonier service questionnaires and web
site recquest and recommendation forms accessible 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and the random independent phone
“Citizen Satisfaction Survey.” By putting citizens and local government officials into the decision-making loop, the
City will be shifting to a more open and inclusive process of governance.

The City is pursuing performance measurement type initiatives and continues to review policies and procedures to
assure their compliance and alignment with the City’s completed Strategic Plan (March 2004) and updated (February
2006 and December 2008).

The City was successful at attaining a grant through the Center for Civic Innovation in order to further this effort and
completed its first Citizen Satisfaction Survey in November of 2004 and a second Survey in October of 20035, as well as
publish the first ever City Performance Measurement Report in January of 2005, a second Performance Measurement
Report in January of 2006, and a third in December of 2006 as a result of this grant award. It will be eminent for the
City to review and update its strategic plan in the coming years. The Citizen Centric reporting costs were incorporated
into the fiscal 2010 budget and the results will be analyzed prior to drafting the fiscal 2011 budget. These initiatives are
important for the City’s continued efficient growth into the future.

The City was the first community in the country to issue a citizen centric prototype report in order to more efficiently
comimunicate City finances and performance in a concise 4-page report which is aimed to stimulate them to want to
learn more. The City was also successful at obtaining a second grant through the National center for Civic Innovation
in order to conduct the independent citizen satisfaction survey again in fiscal 2010.

The recently completed fifth annual report of performance information displays the operational efficiencies and
effectiveness of our operations here at the City of Saco. The City’s first five submittals were successful at achieving the
Association of Governmental Accountants Certificate of Excellence in Service Efforts and Accomplishments
Reporting. These processes all involve reviewing processes and measuring results achieved by the municipality in the
area of customer service delivery and presentation. It also involves a close look at all procedures to assure that
efficiencies are being maximized. Whether it means changing a specific procedure to lessen expenditures realized or
examining new sources of non-tax revenues, the City needs to be pro-active in its response. Certainly, whatever we can
do to keep up with changing trends and emerging issues will help to improve the future forfunes of our citizens.
Successful activities involving a collaborative effort between municipalities need to be reviewed as a potential solution
to some of the budget challenges facing us and other municipalities.



CITY O¥F SACO, MAINE
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
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This executive summary would not be complete without the mention of the 2006 enacted “Public Law 1 Tax Reform.”
This legislation was enacted within the State of Maine and the City was in compliance with this legislation for the
passing of the 2009 budget. This levy limitation is calculated based on two factors; one is certified by the State andis a
state-wide personal income growth factor and the second is a local factor of the last known new growth percentage
within each community. These two percentages are added together to arrive at the levy limitation percentage for each
community across the State of Maine. The property tax levy in total can not increase by more than this amount without
special disclosures made by the City Council and special motions made in order to approve the budget noting why the
budget is exceeding the levy limitation. The fiscal year 2010 approved budget for the City of Saco is in compliance
with Public Law 1 as there was no increase in municipal expenditures. The $0.20 increase noted below was exclusively
the result of the RSU’s increase in operating costs.

Summary

With the fiscal year 2010 adopted budget there is an increase in the existing tax rate. This equates to an estimated
increase of .20 cents in the City’s mil rate. This means that property owners will be billed an estimated $13.62 per
thousand in fiscal year 2010 versus the $13.42 per thousand they were billed in fiscal year 2009. In other words, a
property valued at $200,000 previously and paying $2,664 in property taxes annually would pay $2.724 in property
taxes annuoally, an increase of $40 for that $200,000 homeowner and an increase of $666,952 on the total City property
tax levy. Not a bad investment considering the benefits being received and the service levels being provided across the
City.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the City's finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any
questions about this report or need any additional financial information, please contact the Finance Director: by mail at
300 Main Street, Saco, Maine, 04072; by phone at 207-282-1032; or via e-mail at cheryl.fournier@sacomaine.org.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Statement of Net Assets

Statement 1

June 30, 2609
Governmental Business-type 2009
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents k) 4,753658 3 207 % 4,754,165
Investments 2,165,731 - 2,165,731
Receivables:
Accounts net of allowance of $25,0003 2,278,205 366,087 2,644,292
Taxes - current 924,812 - 924,812
Taxes - prior years 87,843 - 87,843
Tax liens 290,266 - 280,266
Notes {net of allowance of $7,172) 14,287 - 14,287
Tnventories and other 43,224 - 43,224
Prepaid expenses 210,116 - 210,116
Tax acquired property 58.359 - 58,359
Depreciable capital assets, net 17,946,750 3,428,333 21,369,083
Non-depreciable capital assets 37,671,628 15,184,746 52,856,374
Total assets 60,439,179 18,979,373 85,418,552
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 1,645,258 201,496 1,846,754
Accrued Habilities 1,704,413 30,161 1,734,574
Taxes collected in advance 22,844 - 22,844
Internal balance 616,522 (610,522) -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 2,555,069 227,500 2,782,569
Due in more than one year 15,925,650 1,490,633 17,416,283
Total liabilities 22,469,756 1,333,268 23,803,024
NET ASSETS _
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 38,579,789 16,983,079 55,562,868
Restricted for:
Permanent fund principal 181,383 - 181,383
Other purposes 766,837 - 766,837
Unrestricted 4,441,414 663,026 5,104,440
Total net assets 3 43969423 % 17,646,105 § 61,615,528

See accompanying notes 1o basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Statement of Activities

¥or the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Statement 2

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenne and Changes
in Net Assets

X (_)E""mﬁng Capital Primary Government
Charges for G rants a_nd Grants and Governmental Business-type 2009
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary govemment:
Governmental activities:
General Government 5 2,783,447 § 702,886 % 265,483 3 -8 (1.815,078) § -3 (1,815.078)
Public Safety 5,667,340 759,619 71,145 299,091 (4,537.485) - (4,537,485)
Public Waorks 4,399,733 314,135 20,493 513,375 (3,551,730) . (3.551,730)
Housing Programs 232,512 - 246,830 . 14318 B 14218
Culture and Recreation 1,008,761 628,’."?4- 3,759 (376,208} - {376.208)
Fducation 30,038,189 1,221,754 13,943,400 . (14,873,035 - (14,873,035)
Unclassified 4,407,833 - - - (4,407 838} . (4,407.838)
Interest on Debt 1,078,510 - - - (1,078,510) N (10785109
Capital Maintenance Programs - - - 4,187 4,187 . 4187
Total governmentat activities 49,616,330 3,621,188 14,551,110 816,653 (30,621,379) - (30.621,379)
Business-type activities:
Waste Water Tieatment Plant _ 2,342,235 1,739,381 - . R (602.874) (602.874)
Total business-type activities 2,342.255 1,739,381 - N R (602,874 (602.87)
Total primary government 3 SLIESRS § 3366369 8 14,951,110 3 816,653 § (36,621,379) $ 602.874) S (31.224,253)
General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 3 27,822,600 & $ 77 822,600
Moter vebicle excise taxes 2,684,427 ; 7‘68-’3 ’42»7
Franchise tax 275215 ; ~,7’}§:’?}5
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs: ) DA
Homestead Exemption 250,300 } 250,300
Other State aid 116.628 B ;1 6’62;%
State Revenue Sharing 1444 817 ) . 4:1/‘.81';
Unrestricted investment earnings 170.515 18 054 ,2.(.)%3;6“)
Miscellaneous revenues (] 06!471) 8.733 (Q;,;n %
T nl reve . % Z 2. 02¢
Total general revenues 33758 040 96,787 5 R04 827
Change in net assets 2,136,661 (556,087) 1580574
Net assets - beginning, as restated 41.832.762 18.202.192 £0.034.954
-3 3 s 3 $] A )
1 .
Met assets - ending $ 43969423 $ 17,646,105 § 61,615,528

See accompanying notes 1o basic financiol starements.



CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

Statement 3

June 39, 2009
Milt Brook Saco Island Other 2009 Total
General Tndustrial TIF Governmental  Governmental
Fund Park District Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents § 4005807 $ -3 - 3 748,151 5 4,753,958
Investments 200,173 - 76 1965482 2,165,731
Receivables, net of allowance of $25,000 1,138,115 - 1,602 1,138,488 2,278,205
Interfund receivables 6,513,997 - - 2,027,064 8,541,061
Loans receivable, net of allowance $7,142 - - 14,287 14,287
Taxes and Eens receivable 1,302,921 - . 1,302,921
Tax acquired property 58,359 - - 58,359
Prepaid items 210,116 - - - 210,116
Inventories and other - " 43,224 43,224
Total assets $ 13420488 $ - 3 1678 $ 5936696 $ 19,367,862
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,419,086 - 8,439 217,733 1,645,258
Accrued liabilities 1,604,824 - 47.223 52,366 1,704,413
Taxes collected in advance 22,844 - - - 22,844
Interfund payables 4,312,016 1,344,494 2.362,116 1,138,957 9,157,583
Deferred revenue 1,017,048 - - - 1 ’0 17,048
Total Habilities 8,373,8]8 1,344,494 2.417,778 13409,056 }3:54‘},146
Fund balances (deficis):
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 203,705 - - 203,705
Prepuid itenms 210,116 - - - 210,116
Nonexpendable trust principal - - - 383
Capital improvements 2,253,647 N - e !38% 2 éﬁéz;
Inventory - - - 4913 ' 4,913
Other purposes - 766:837 766,837
Unreserved, reported in;
General Fund- designated 272,809 - - 272,800
Ceneral Fund- undesignated 2,113393 - - B 2,113,393
Special revenue funds - - - 1,484 925 1,484,925
Capital project funds - (1,344,484} (2,416,100% 1;852;297 (1,898,297}
Permanent funds - - - 227-?85 ) 227,285
Total fund balances (deficits) 2,033,670 (1.344494) (2,416,100 1,527,640 5,820,716
Total Liabilities and fund balances (deficits) $ 13420488 $ -3 1,678 § 5,936,696
Ayuounts reported for governmental activilies in the stalement of aet assets (Statement 1) ave different because (See Note 4, also):
Capital agsets used in governmental acliviiies are sot finarcial resources and therefore age not reported in the funds. 55,612,378
Muwe specificaily, non-degrecizble & deprecia s reporled on Statement 1
i 1g bonds payabie, are not due and 5 the current period and therefore sre not reported
i), (18,480,719}
es a5 reporied on Statemasnt 1 (17,268,706}
¢35 (compensated ehsences) a8 reporied on Staiement 1 (1,212,013)
(18.480.719)
Deferred revenues- more specifically, deferred property 13xes not reporied on Statement 1,017,048

Net assets of povernmeninl activities

35

$ 43,969,423

See accompanying notes 1 pasic financial statements.



CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 36, 2009

Statement 4

Mill Brook Saco Island Other 2609 Total
General Industrial TIF Governmental Governmental
Fund Park District Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ 30,278,683 § . - % - $  30278,683
Licenses and permity 770,778 - - - 770,778
Intergovernmental 13,391,276 - - 2,378,772 15,770,048
Intergovernmental on-behalf payments 1,844,021 - - - 1,844,021
Charges for services 968,773 - - 867,721 1,836,494
Other revenues 422,129 - ] 349 453 771,583
Total revenues 47,675,660 - 1 3,595,946 51,271,607
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 2,270,911 - - - 2,276,211
Public safety 3,417.894 - - - 5.417,894
Public works 4,589,463 - - - 4,589,463
Housing programs - - - 232,512 232,512
Culture and recreation 1,071,275 - - - 1,071,275
Education 26,201,266 - . 2,044,340 28,245,606
Maine PERS on-behalf payments 1,844,021 - - - 1,844,021
Unclassified 3,284,077 - - 102,849 3,380,926
Intergovernmenial:
County fax 1,020,912 - - - 1,020,912
Debt service:
Principal 1,617,043 - 1,617,045
Interest and other charees 1,078,510 . - - 1,078,510
Capital improvements 1,480,882 - 979,132 480,248 2,940,262
Total expenditures 49,876,256 - 979,132 2,859,949 53,715,337
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,200,596) - (979,131) 735,997 (2,443,730
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital lease issuance of debt 705,775 - - N 703,775
Transfers in 366,000 ~ 390,984 143,164 900,148
Transfers out (830,148) (70,600 - (900,148}
Total oiher financing sources (uses) 241,627 - 320,584 143,164 705,775
Net change in fund balances {1,958,969) - (658,147) 879,161 (1,737.955)
Fund balances (deficits)-beginning, as restated 7,012,639 (1,344 494) (3,757,253) 3,648,479 7,558,671

Fund balances (deficits)-ending

S 5053,670 $ (1,344,494 $  (2,416,160)

$ 4,527,640

$ 5,820,716

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



" Statement 5

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds (from Statement 4) $ (1,737,955)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities {Siatement 2) are different becanse (see Note 1, also):

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures,
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense, with the exception of infrastructure which is recorded
at historical cost and not depreciated as the Modified Approach is
being used. More specifically, this is the amount by which capital outlays

and loss on disposal exceeded depreciation in the cusrent period. 2,037,507
Capital Qutlays $ 3,632,168
Less: Net Depreciation 1,594,661
To reconciliation $ 2,037,507

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in
the funds. More specifically, this amount represents the change in
deferred property taxes. 728.353

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayinent of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governinental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term labilities in the statement of net
assets. More specifically, this represents the net amount of principal

increases (decreases) in debt service made during the year. 1,906,073
New debt incurred 5 (705,775%)
Retired debt 2,611,848
Net debt service 3 1,906,073

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. More specifically, this represents

the change in long term accrued compensated absences {61,200)
and the change in long term other post employment benefits, {236,117
(297,317
Change in net assets of governmental activities (see Statement 2) $ 2,136,661

See¢ accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY QF SACO, MAINE
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Statement 6

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Original Final . Actoal Amounts  Positive (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes K3 30,716,903 3 30,716,503 $ 30278683 S {438,220)
Licenses and permits 975,011 975,011 770,778 {204,233)
Intergovernmental 13,343,835 13,343,855 13,391,276 47,421
Charges for services 898,500 998,500 968,773 {(29,727)
Interest carnings 250,000 250,000 120,201 (129,799)
Qther revenues 457,962 457,962 301,928 (156,034)
Total revenues 46,742,231 46,742,231 45,831,639 (910,552)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Genersl government 2,224,349 2,318,503 2,270,911 47,992
Pablic safety 5,511,011 5,542,383 5,417,894 124,489
Public works 4,579,659 4,584,298 4,580,463 (5,163)
Culture and recreation 520,250 923,682 1,071,273 (147,393)
Fdusation 26,690,683 26,690,683 26,149,449 541,234
County tax 1,020,912 1,020,912 1,020,612 -
Unclassified 4,046,163 4,049,991 3,284,077 765,914
Debt service 2,642,797 2,642,797 2,693,555 (52,758)
Capital improvements 363,876 372,562 775,107 (402,545)
Total expenditures 47,999,700 48,146,211 47,274,643 871,568
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,257,469 {(1,403,980) (1,443,004) {39,024)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 366,000 366,000 366,000 -
Transfers out (663,229) {663,229) (830,148) (166,919}
Total other financing sources and uses {297,229) {297,229 (464,148) (166,919)
Net change in fund balances {1,554,698) (1,701,209} (1,907,152) (205,943)
Fund balance - beginning, as restated 7,012,639 7,012,639 7,012,639
Fund balance - ending $ 5,457,941 4 5,311,430 § 5105487 $ (205,943
Net change in fund balance for the general fund in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
(Statement 4) is different because:
Statement 4 is reported under the Modified Accrual basis of accounting and therefore includes
the change in accrual for the Teachars summer salaries amount of (51817}
Ending Fund Balance (Statement 4) $ 5,053,670

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



Statement 7

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund

June 30, 2009

Business-type activities
Enterprise Funds
Waste Water
Treatment Plant

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 207
Receivables 366,087
Interfund receivables 616,522
Total current assets 082,816
Noncurrent assets:
Depreciable capital assets
Vehicles 120,687
Buildings 14,775,600
Equipment 2,935,727
Less accumulated depreciation (14,403,681)
Non-depreciable capital assets 15,184,746
Total noncurrent assets 18,613,079
Total assets 19,595,805
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 201,496
Accrued liabilities 118,294
Total current liabilities 319,760
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable due within one year 227,500
Bonds payable due in more than one year 1,402,500
Total noncurrent lLiabilities 1,630,000
Total labilities 1,849,790
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 16,983,679
Unrestricted 663,026
Total net assets $ 17,646,108

~

9

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Statement 8

Business-type activities
Enterprise Funds

Waste Water
Treatment Plant

Operating revenues:

Charges for services $ 1,739,381
Miscellaneous revenues 8,733
Total operating revenues 1,748,114
Operating expenses:
Personnel services 885,825
Contractual services 213,270
Utilities 206,384
Repairs and maintenance 13,094
Other supplies and expenses 451,901
Depreciation 505,108
Total operating expenses 2,275,582
Operating loss (527,468
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest revenues 38,054
Interest expense {66,673)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (28,619)
Change in net assets (556,087}
Total net assets - beginning 18,202,192
Total net assets - ending 4 17,646,105
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Statement 9

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2609

Business-{ype activities
Enterprise Funds
Waste Water
Treatment Plant

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers i) 1,636,106
Other receipts (payments) 8,733
Payments to suppliers (723.819)
Payments to employees (875,084)
Internal activity- payments to/from other funds (3,533,436}
Net cash (used) in operating activities (3,487,500

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital asset purchases (453,920)
Principal paid on debt (345,000)
Interest paid on debt {66,673)

] Net cash (used) in capital and related financing activities (865,593)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest on investments 38,054
Net cash provided by investing activities 38,054
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,315,039)

Balances- beginning of the year 4,315,246

Balances- end of the year % 207

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided
{used) by operating activities: -
Operating loss (527,468)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided
{used) in operating activities:

Depreciation expense 505,108
Change in net assets and liabilities:
Receivables (103,273)
Interfund receivables (616,522)
Interfund pavables (2,916,914}
Accounts payables 160,830
Accroed labilities ‘ 10,741
Net cash provided by cperating activities $ (3,487,500)

Se¢ accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement 10

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2009
Agency
Fund
School Activity
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 126,828
Total assets 126,828
LIABILITIES
Due to student groups 126,828
Total liabilities $ 126,828

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF SACQO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

B.

The Reporting Entity

The City of Saco, Maine was incorporated in 1867 under the laws of the State of Maine. The City operates
under a Mayor-Council and City Administrator form of government and provides the following services:
general governmental services, public safety, public works (highways, streets and sewers), health, sanitation
and welfare, culture and recreation, planning and zoning, education and public improvements. The Councilis
made up of seven members clected by registered voters.

The criteria used to determine which accounting entities, agencies, commissions, boards and authorities are
part of the City’s operations include how the budget is adopted, whether debt is secured by general obligation
of the City, the City’s duty to cover any deficits that may occur, and supervision over the accounting functions.
There are no agencies, organizations or activities meeting any of the above criferia that are excluded from the
City reporting entity.

The accounting policies of the City of Saco conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant of
such policies.

Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as approprate.
Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activifies are controlled.

Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City, the primary
government, as a whole. These statements distinguish between activities that are governmental and those that
are considered business-type activities.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial
statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared.
Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better
identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. The City has elected not to allocate indirect costs among the programs,
functions and segments. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, 2) operating grants
and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. The comparison of
program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-
financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Net assets should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net assets
restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their net asset use.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of governmental and enterprise
fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented
in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The major funds of
the City are the General Fund, the Mili Brook Industrial Park fund and the Saco Island TIF Fund. The General
Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not
allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund. From the fund are
paid the general operating expenses, the fixed charges and the capital improvement costs that are not paid
through other funds. The Mill Brook Industrial Park fund accounts for expenditures related to the City’s
construction of a business industrial park with revenues being derived from the sale of lots within the same.
The Saco Island TIF Fund accounts for property taxes received from this tax increment financing district and
the capital improvements made within the same.

Additionally. the City reports the following fund type:

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others. The
City's only fiduciary funds include: agency funds (school activity funds).

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

All governmental funds are accounted for using modified accrual basis of accounting and the current financial
resources measurement focus, Under this basis revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they
become measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund

Hability is incurred, if measurable.

Revenue Recognition

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources
are deemed both measurable and available (i.e., collectible within the current year or within 60 days of year-
end and available to pay obligations of the current period). This includes investment earmnings, income taxes
withheld by emplovers, estate taxes, fines and forfeitures and state motor vehicle excise taxes.
Reimbursements due for federally funded projects are accrued as revenue at the time the expenditures are
made, or when received in advance, deferred until expenditures are made.

Property taxes, though measurable, are not available soon enough in the subsequent year to finance current
period obligations, Therefore, property tax receivables are recorded and deferred until they become available.
Other revenues, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services, income taxes other than those
withheld by employers and miscelianeous revenues, are recorded as revenue when received in cash because
they are generally not measurable until actually recejved.



CiTY OF SACO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

F

Expenditure Recognition

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Mostexpenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on long-term debt as well as expenditures related to
certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are only recorded when payment is due. Allocation of
cosis, such as depreciation, is not recognized in the governmental funds.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds account for
operations that are primarily financed by user charges. The economic resource measurement focus concerns
determining costs as a means of maintaining the capital investment and management control. Their revenues
are recognized when they arc earned and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Allocations of
costs, such as depreciation, are recorded in proprietary funds. Proprietary fund types have selected to
consistently not follow Financial Accounting Standards Board proncuncements issued subsequent to
November 30, 1989 as permitted under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s proprietary
fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Encumbrances

“ncumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure
of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an
extension of formal budgetary integration. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations
of fund balances within the fund financial statements, since they do not constitute expenditares or labilities
and are added to the subsequent year's adopted appropriations.

Cash and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. City policy is that
deposits can only be made in financial institutions insured by the FDIC. The City’s investment policy
authorizes investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, repurchase agreements, certain
corporate bonds, certain certificates of deposit and certain money market funds. The City invests its funds in
an effort to ensure preservation of capital, remain sufficiently liquid and attain a reasonable market rate of
return, while remaining within the gaidelines as provided by the City’s Investment Policy.

Investments are reported at fair value except for money market investments that have a remaining maturity at
time of purchase of one year or less are stated at amortized cost. Income earned from the investments of
pooled cash is allocated to the various funds on the basis of the average cash balance allocated to each fund.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considered all highly liguid investments with a maturity
of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

G.

H.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Inventories

Inventory is valued at cost using the first in, first cut method. Inventory within (he governmental activities
consists of those within the School Nutrition Program (Special Revenue Fund).

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2009, are recorded as prepaid
items.

Capital Assets

The City’s assets are capitalized at historical cest or estimated historical cost. City policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $8,000. The City has chosen the Modified Approach for
reporting the infrastructure assets of the City. Gifts or contributions of capital assets are recorded at fair market
value when received. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Buildings 40 years
Building Improvements 40 years
VYehicles 5 years
Office furniture and fixtures 7 years
Equipment 10-20 years
Computer equipment 3 vears

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) issued Statement No. 34, which
requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local government’s basic financial statements. In
accordance with Statement No. 34, the City has included the value of all infrastructure into the 2008-2009
Basic Financial Statements, The City developed an implementation plan to determine the value of and include
infrastructare costs.

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets include’
the street system; water purification and distribution system; sewer collection and treatment system; park and
recreation lands and improvement system; storm water conveyance system; and buildings site amenities such as
parking used by the City in the conduct of its business. Each major infrastructure system can be divided into
subsystems. For example, the street system can be divided into concrete and asphalt pavements, concrete
curbing, sidewaiks, streetlights, traffic control devices (signs, signals and pavement markings), landscaping and
land. Subsystem detail is not presented in these basic financial statements; however, the City maintains
detailed informaiion on these subsystems.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

The City elected to use the Modified Approach as defined by Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting.
The City commissioned a physical assessment of all infrastructure conditions in 2000 (fiscal year 2001), as
well as three years later in 2003 (fiscal year 2004), and again in 2006 (fiscal year 2007). This condition
assessment will continue to be performed every 3 years and will be performed nextin 2009 (fiscal year 2010).
In 2000, the City commissioned a physical condition assessment of the streets which was completed and dated
Febraary, 2001. The City commissioned a second physical condition assessment of its streets in 2003 and has
done so on an annual basis since then. These streets, primarily concrete, were defined as all physical features
associated with the operation of motorized vehicles that exist within the limits of right of way. This condition
assessment will be performed annually through the City’s road pavement condition index survey. Each street
was assigned a physical condition cased on 17 potential defects. A pavement condition index (PCI), a
nationally recognized index, was assigned to each street and expressed in a continuous scale from 0 to 100,
where 0 is assigned to the least acceptable physical condition and 100 is assigned the physical characteristics of
anew street. The following conditions were defined: Good condition was assigned to those segments with a
rating between 80-100 and given a 1 rating within the asset management system, Fair condition was assigned
to those segments with a rating between 63-79 and given a 2 rating within the asset management system, Poor
condition was assigned to those segments with a rating between 50-64 and given a 3 rating within the asset
management system, and a Substandard condition was assigned to those segments with a rating between 0-49
and given a 4 rating within the asset management system. The City’s policy relative to maintaining the street
assets is to achieve a minimum rating of 70 for all street segments. This acceptable rating allows minor
cracking and raveling of the pavement along with minor roughness that could be noticeable to drivers traveling
at the posted speeds.

In 2001, 2004 and again in 2007, the City subcontracted with an independent engineering firm to inventory
and perform a condition assessment on all other City infrastructure assets. These other infrastructure assets,
sewer pipe, catch basins and manholes, storm drainage, sidewalks, traffic lights and signage, were then
combined with the streets on the City’s Asset Management System. Per the rating system noted above, each
infrastructure asset was assigned a condition assessment based on a visual inspection conducted on each asset.

The City’s policy relative to maintaining other infrastructure assets is to achieve a minimum rating of 2 for all
other infrastructure assets.

For all other capital assets; buildings, vehicles, equipment reporting, the City elects to use the Basic Approach,
as defined by Statement No. 34. The City conducted an inventory of all other capital assets for fiscal year 2000
and performs updates annually.

This original and updated process determined the original cost, which is defined as the actual cost to acquire
new property in accordance with market prices at the time of first construction or acquisition. Original costs
were developed in one of three ways: 1) historical records; 2) standard unit costs appropriate for the
construction/acquisition date; or 3) present cost indexed by a reciprocal factor of the price increase from the
construction/acquisition date to the current date. The accumulated depreciation, defined as the total
depreciation from the date of construction/acquisition to the current date on a straight line, unrecovered cost
method was computed using industry accepted life expectancies for each capital asset. The book value was
then computed by deducting the accumulated depreciation from the original cost.

K. Compensated Absences

Under terms of personnel policies and union contracts, vacation and sick leave are granted in varying amounts
according to length of service. Employees are paid for allowable accruals upen termination of employment.

In the fund financial statements, no amount is recorded unfess the amount is to be paid out shortly after year-
end. The full Hability is recorded in the government-wide stalements.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2609

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

L.

Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due. In the fund financial statements,
for other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial
resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund.

Fund Equity

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure, or are legally segregated for
a specific future use.

Encumbered amounts are also reflected as a reserve for encumbrances in the fund financial statements.
Landfill Closure and Posiclosure Care Cost

Statement No. 18 of the Government Accounting Standards Board entitled: “Accounting for Municipal Solid
Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs™ requires the City to record a liability for the estimated
costs of landfill closure and postclosure care, as required by government authorities.

State and federal regulations require that the City place a final cover on its current operating landfills when
waste is no longer accepted and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at these sites fora
period of thirty years after closure. In addition to operating expenditures related to current activities of the
Iandfills, a related Hability is required to be recognized based on the future closure and postclosure care costs
that will be paid near or after the date that the landfills stop accepting waste. The City of Saco has one landfill,
closure of which 1s complete. Some monitoring costs will be required in the future, however these costs are not
deemed to be material and were therefore not recorded as a liability.

Note 2 - DEPOSITS-AND INVESTMENTS

The City's policy is to invest all available funds at the highest possible rates, in conformance with legal and
administrative guidelines, while avoiding unreasonable risk.

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk- City Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City does have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. This
policy details eligibility for authorization to include banks or savings and loans that are a member of the FDIC
and meet the following minimum credit criteria: (1) qualify as a depository of public funds in the State of
Maine as defined in Title 30-A, Section 5706 of the Maine Revised Statutes, (2) have a Highline Data Peer
Group rating of a 30 or better and (3) have a Financial Publishing rating of a 125 or better. As of June 30,
2009, the City reported deposits of $4,880,993 with a bank balance of $4,055,901. Of the City’s bank
balances of $4,055,901, $0 was exposed to custodial credit risk. The entire balance of $4,055,901 was covered
by the F.D.L.C. or by additional insurance purchased on behalf of the City by the respective banking
mstitutions.

Deposits have been reported as follows:

Reported in governmental funds $4,753,958
Reported in proprietary funds 207
Reported in agency funds 126.828
Total deposits $ 4,880,993
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Investments

Custodial Credit Risk- City Investments: For investments, this is the risk that in the event of failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The City does have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk as is outlined
above. Of the City’s $1,757,878 in investments, 100% was collateralized by underlying securities held by the
related bank in the City’s name.

At June 30, 2009, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Fair Less than More than

Value 1 vear 1-5 vears 5 vears

Money market funds $1,557,878 $ 1,557,878 $ - s -
Mutual funds 75,962 75,962 - -
Stock 316,891 316,891 - -
Savings bonds 15,000 15,000 - -
Repurchase agreements 200.600 200.000 - -
Total investments $ 2.165.731 $ 2,165,731 $ - $ -

Investments have been reported as follows:

Reported in governmental funds $ 2,165,731
Total investments $ 2.163.731

Interest Rate Risk: The City does have a policy related to investment rate risk. This policy details that the
investment and cash management portfolio be designed {o attain a market value rate of return throughout
budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account prevailing market conditions, risk constraints for eligible
securities and cash flow requirements.

Credit Risk: Maine statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies,
repurchase agreements and certain corporate stocks and bonds, The City does have a formal policy related to
credit risk as is detailed above. At June 30, 2009, the City’s investments were rated either AAA or AA by
Standard & Poor’s,

Note 3 - PROPERTY TAXES

The City's property tax is levied on the assessed value listed as of the prior April 1 for all taxable real and personal
property located in the City. Assessed values are periodically established by the assessor at 100% of assumed market
value. Each property must be reviewed no less than once every four years. The assessed value for the list of April 1,
2008, upon which the levy for the year ended June 30, 2009 was based, was $2,051,483,000. This assessed value was
100% of the estimated market valve and 96.72% of the 2009 state valuation of $2,121,100,000.

The City is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy taxes up to 105% of its net budgeted expenditures for
the related fiscal period. The amount raised in excess of 100% is referred to as overlay, and amounted to $752,011 for
the year ended Fune 30, 2009.

Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax commitment date if taxes are delinquent.
The City has the aathority to foreclose on property eighteen months after the filing of the lien if tax liens and associated

costs remain unpaid.

49



CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 36, 2009

Note 3 - PROPERTY TAXES, Continued
Property taxes levied during the year were recorded as receivables at the time the levy was made. The receivables
collected during the year and in the first sixty days following the end of the fiscal year have been recorded as revenues.

The remaining receivables have been recorded as deferred revenues.

The following summarizes the 2008-2009 and 2007-2008 levies respectively:

2008-2009 2007-2008
Assessed Value : $2,051,483,000 $1,995,056,900
Tax Rate (per $1,000) 13.42 13.32
Commitment $ 27.530,902 $ 26,574,151
Supplemental Taxes Assessed 6.169 15.193

$ 27,537,071 $ 26,589,344
Less: Collections and Abatements 26,612,259 25.737.256

Receivable at June 30, 2009 and 2008 S 924,812 S 852,088

Due Dates 9/12/08 9/14/G7

3/13/09 3/14/08
Interest Rates on Delinquent Taxes 11.0% 12.0%
Collection Rate 96.64% 96.80%

Of the total taxes committed for the year ended June 30, 2009, $390,984 was allocated to the Saco Island TIF District,
$20,767 was allocated to First Light Technology, Inc., $2,413 was allocated to Transparent Audio, $157,812 was
allocated to the Spring Hill TIF, $31,763 was allocated to Saco Plaza LL.C, $69,371 was allocated to Industrial Park
(People’s Choice FCU), $3,032 was allocated to Incon/Franklin Fuels and $5,231 was allocated to Park North under
the approved incremental tax levied on the Tax Increment Financing Districts' "captured assessed value” (see Note 9).



CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has reported all capital assets including infrastructure in the
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets. The City elected to use the “modified approach” as defined by GASB
Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. As a result, no accumulated depreciation or depreciation expense has
been recorded for these assets. A more detailed discussion of the “modified approach™ is presented in the Required
Supplementary Information section of this report. All other capital assets were reported using the basic approach
whereby accumulated depreciation and depreciation expense has been recorded. The table below presents summary
information on non-depreciable assets for the years ending June 30, 2008 and 2009.

Historical Accumulated Net Net
Cost Depreciation Cost 2009 Cost 2008
Governmental Activities:
M odified Approach:
Catch basins and manholes $ 2,308,565 - 2,308,565 2,294,508
Storm drainage 17,839,300 - 17,836,300 17,839,038
Sidewalks 1,630,130 - 1,630,130 1,578,296
Street Pavement System 5,612,331 - 9,612,331 8,578,587
Traffic signals 795,155 - 795,155 795,155
Street signs 44 818 - 44,818 44,818
Land 5,178,042 - 5,178,042 5,178,042
Construction in progress 263,287 - 263,287 1,983,763
Total Governm ental A ctivities 37,671,628 - 37,671,628 38,292,207

Business-ty pe Activities:

Sewer pipe 14 918,272 - 14,918,272 14,918,272
Construction in progress 266,474 - 266,474 -
Total Business-type Activities $ 15,184,746 - 15,184,746 14,918,272

Capital assets of the City for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2009, consisted of the following:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
Governmental Activities:
Buildings and Iroprovements 5 34,583,190 $ 3470544 § - % 38,053,734
Vehicles 7,079,204 505,573 {172,888) 7,411,889
Machinery and Equipment 5,648,893 276,630 - 5,925,523
Total 47,311,287 4,252,747 (172,888) 51,351,146
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements {22,197,204) (793,937 - (22,991,141)
Vehicles (4,880,102) (503,219 172,888 (5,210,433)
Machinery and Equipment (4,951,317) (297,505) - (5,248,822)
Total (32,028,623) (1,594,661) 172,888 (33,450,396)
Total Governmental Activities $ 15,282,664 § 2658086 $ - $ 17,940,756
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MNote 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

The change in accumulated depreciation can be further detailed by major class of assets as follows:

Vehicles $ 503,219
Buildings 793,937
Equipment 297,505
TOTAL $1.594.661
Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
Business-type Activities:
Buildings and Improvements $ 14,775,600 5 - $ - $ 14,775,600
Vehicles 120,687 - - 120,687
Machinery and Equipment 2,748,281 187,446 - 2,935,727
Total 17,644,568 187,446 - 17,832014
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements (11,813,807) {368,582) - (12,182,389)
Vehicles (115,651) (5,038) - (120,689)
Machinery and Equipment (1,969,115) (131,488) - (2,100,603)
Total (13,898,573) (505,108) - (14,403 681)
Total Business-type Activities $ 3,745,995 $ (317,662) $ - $ 3,428,333

The change in accumulated depreciation can be further detailed by major class of assets as follows:

Vehicles $ 5,038
Buildings 368,582
Equipment 131,488
TOTAL $ 505.108

For the year ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, depreciation expense on capital assets was charged to the government
functions as follows:

General Government

Public Safety — Police

Public Works

Parks and Recreation

Public Safety — Fire
Education

Total Depreciation Expense

$ 215,219 $ 125,052
141.149 143,629
349,534 302,212

40,336 35,767
229,245 224,837
.019.178 —674.005

For the year ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, repairs and maintenance expenses on capital and infrastructure assets were

charged to the government functions as follows:

Public Safety — Police

Public Safety — Fire/Ambulance
Public Works

Parks and Recreation

Capital Improvement Projects

2009

98,458

47,191
356,941
114,363

Total Repairs & Maintenance Expense § 1,124,352

W

2008
101,234
48,115
283,506
25,597
788,291
$1.246,743
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Note 5 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City’s policy relating to compensated absences is described in Note 1. The long-term portion of this debt,
amounting to $1,212,013 for governmental activities and $88,133 for business-type activitics at June 30, 2009, is
expected to be paid in future years from future resources. In prior years, compensated absences have been liquidated
primarily by the general fund and the enterprise fund, with a minor amount being paid from certain special revenue

funds.

Note 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions within the governmental activities and the business-type
activities for the City for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Bonds & Motes  Capital Leases Compensated
Payable Payable Absences Total

Governmental Activities:

Debt Payable at June 30, 2008 $ 16,130,643 $ 2,808,019 $ 1,150,813 § 20,089,475

Add: New debt payables - 705,775 61,200 766,973

16,130,643 3,513,794 1,212,013 20,856,450

L.ess: Debt retired 1,617,045 594 803 - 2,611,848

Debt Payable at June 30, 2009 5 14,513,598 $ 2,518,991 § 1,212,013 $ 18,244,602

Due within one year 1,614,545 940,524 - 2,555,069
Business-type Activities:

Debt Payable at June 30, 2008 1,975,000 - 83,957 2,058,957

Add: New debt payables - ~ 4,176 4,176

1,975,000 - 88,133 2,063,133

L.ess: Debt retired 345,000 - - 345,600

Debt Payable at June 30, 2009 % 1,630,000 3 - 3 88,133 § 1,718,133

Due within one year 227,500 - - ' 227,500
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Note 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

Long-term debt payable at June 30, 2009 is comprised of the following:

Original Issue Final Balance Due Within

General Obligation Bonds Interest Rate Amount Maturity Date  End of Year One Year
Governmental Activities:

2007 Infrastructure Bond 4.15% - 4.20% $4,355,000 10/1/2027 $4,135,600 $220,000
2006 Open Space Bond 4.00% - 4.50% 1,500,000 1/1/2026 1,275,000 75,000
2003 Refunding Bond 3.85% 2,977,057 10/1/2018 1,860,661 186,066
2002 Refunding Bond (50%) 2.00% - 4.50% 1,092,500 10/1/2014 470,000 82,500
2002 School Renovation (1) None 1,159,789 1/1/2011 347,937 115,979
2002 School Renovation 3.25% - 5.00% 5,940,000 1/1/2022 3,840,000 300,000
1996 Police Station 3.60% 2,000,000 10/1/2016 800,000 100,000
1996 Route One Sewer {509 5.55% 2,800,000 10/1/2016 1,160,000 145,000
1991 School Construction 7.40% - 7.50% 4,700,000 9/1/2010 470,000 235,000
1989 Capital Improvement 7.25% - 7.30% 3,100,006 10/25/2009 155,000 155,000
Total - Governmental Activities $14,513,598 $1,614,545

(1) The original amount of this note was $2,456,690 of which $1,296,901 has been forgiven by the State. The City's
outstanding share at June 30, 2009 was $347,937,

Business-type Activities:

2002 Refunding Bond (50%) 2.00% - 4.30% $1,692,500 10/1/2014 $470,000 $82,500
1996 Route One Sewer (50%) 3.55% 2,500,000 10/1/2016 1,160,000 145,000
Total Enterprise Fund $1,630,000 $227.500
Grand Total All Funds $16,143,598 $1,842,045
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Note 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

The annual requirements to amortize General Obligation Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2009 for both governmental
activities and business-type activities are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total Debt Service

Governmental Activities:

2010 $ 1,614,545 $ 540,918 $ 2,155,463
2011 1,452,045 478,704 1,930,749
2012 1,217,045 430,643 1,647,688
2013 1,098,566 391,013 1,489,579
2014 1,096,066 351,090 1,447,156
2015-2019 4,690,330 1,187,662 5,877,992
2020-2024 2,335,000 464,646 2,799,646
2025-2028 1,010,001 82,365 1,092,366
Total $ 14,513,598 $ 3,927,041 $ 18,440,639

Business-type Activities:

2010 $ 227.500 $ 47,933 § 275,433
2011 225,000 40,894 265,894
2012 225,000 33,697 258,697
2013 222,500 26,451 248,951
2014 220,000 19,258 239,258
2015-2017 510,000 20,120 530,120
Total $ 1,630,000 $ 188,353 $1,818,353
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Note 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

Leases that qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes have been recorded at the present value of future minimum
lease payments as of the date of the inception. The School, Fire and Public Works Department leases are reported as a
Hability in the government wide financial statements. The following presents a summary of the capital lease
commitments as of June 30, 2005:

Pregent
Total Value of
Original Annual Minimum Minimum
Purchase Depreciation Lease Lease
Price Expense Payments Interest Payments
Governmental Activities:

Parks mower 2009 $ 42,100 3% 8420 $ 41,136 % 5892 % 35,244
PW Vactor & PR Backhoe 2009 338,322 33,832 366,901 74,068 292,833
Public Works - pick up truck 2009 60,750 31,248 59,876 6,177 53,699
Public Works - dump truck 2009 109,243 21,849 95,420 9,841 85,579
Public Works - equipment 2008 180,000 18,000 151,324 9,155 142,169
Copiers - 2008 78,371 | 15,674 70,654 6,718 63,936
Fire pumper truck 358,853 23,924 344 520 52,528 291,992
Public Works - equipment 2007 312,481 31,248 242,968 33,789 209,179
Public Works - equipment 2006 473,000 61,640 77,525 3,238 74,287
Public Works - equipment 20035 026,532 125,306 382,035 48,581 333,454
Fire Department - Brush truck 96,650 9,465 31,800 2,228 29,572
Cide-wide recycling bins 589,872 39,325 213,578 17.683 195,895
Publie Schools - Modular Class 38,356 5,835 12,820 453 12,365
Public Schools - copiers 2009 147,562 29.512 163,076 15,514 147,562
Public Schools - computer equip. 232.762 46,552 62,156 2,722 59,434
Public Schools - moduiar school 2,054,054 102,703 440,781 - 440,781
Public Scheols - school bus 92.081 189,416 55,248 4238 51.010

$ 2811818 § 292827 § 2518991

The annual requirements to amortize Capital Lease Obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2009 for the Governmental
activities are as follows:

Total Lease

Year Principal Interest Obli gation
2010 $ 940,524 % 3,26 % 1,023,750
2011 367,194 67,526 434,720
2012 367,161 51,657 418,818
2013 293,313 35,897 329,210
2014 211,526 23,366 234,892
2015-2018 339,273 31,155 - 370,428
Total $ 251891 3 2 827 & 2811818

In accordance with 30 MRSA, Section 5061, as amended, o municipality shall incur debt for specified purposes in
excess of certain percentages of the state valuation of such municipality. Additionally, no municipality shall incur debt
in the aggregate in excess of 15% of its stated assessed valuation. The City's outstanding debt at June 30, 2009, of
$18,662,589, was $299,502,411 below the City's statutory debt limit. Total interest expended for all funds of the City
was $757,238, for the year ended June 30, 2009.
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Note 7 - OVERLAPPING DEBT

The City's proportionate share of York County's debt (determined by the percentage of the City's state valuation to the
County's state valuation) is not reported in the City's financial statements. Debt service is included in the annual county
assessment to the City. At June 30, 2009, the City’s equalized State valuation of $2,121,100,000 was 6.75% of the
County’s equalized State Valuation of $31,407,300,000. The City’s share is 6.88%, or $928,231 of York County’s
$13,485,955 long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2009.

Note 8 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Grant Fonds

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowance claims, including ameounts already cellected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Litigation

The City is subject to certain legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of conducting its
activities. In the opinion of management, the City has defensible positions and any ultimate iabilities are covered by
insurance or will not materially affect the financial position of the City.

Note 9 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT

Under Title 30, Subchapter II-B of Maine State statutes, the City formed a Tax Increment Finance (TTEF) District to
finance certain public improvements to Saco Island, formerly kaown as Factory Island. The expenditures from this
development project will be recouped in future years via an incremental tax levied upon the Districts' "captured
assessed value” overa fifteen year period to expire December 30, 2016. The tax increment will be held in the form of a
sinking fund. The short-term financing mechanism for the public improvement projects is a reimbursement agreement
between the City and the project developer.

The City originally established the Saco Island Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District in 1985 and amended itin 1986.
The agreement required certain improvements and required the City to collect monies in a sinking fund. The developer
and its successors were reimbursed for these improvements. The length of this agreement was 15 years from the date of
approval of the second TIF.

In March of 1999 the Maine Department of Economic and Community Development accepted the City’s application to
amend the Saco Island Tax Increment Financing District. It authorized the City to capture increased assessed value for
a period of fifteen years, add approximately 7.5 acres to the District, and revise the program of public improvements, as
part of the City’s continuing revitalization effort of the Downtown and Saco Island, and in response to the state of
Maine's need for a train station on Sace Island. In addition to improvements within the District, TIF proceeds will be
used to organize, construct and improve parking areas within 500 feet of the District.

The City will continue to capture one hundred percent of the first $14,400,000 in increased assessed value to fund the
completion of the improvements within the amended development program. The City will pay for all pablic
improvements in the District, utiizing municipal tax increment revenues on retained captured assessed value generated
by the District and deposited into the Development Program Fund. The City will utilize available Federal funds, to
finance a share of the construction costs of the rail station, and other grant funds as they become available. The City
will not incur any general obligation bond indebtedness in connection with this program.
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Note 9 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT, Continued

Also, in February 1997, the City formed a Tax Increment Finance (TIF) District to assist First Light Technology, Inc.
(The Company) in acquiring real estate, constructing a manufacturing and research building, and to assist the City in
financing the costs of the Public Improvements or to pay the costs of constructing such improvements directly. Under
the Development Program, the City will make a portion of the newly-generated tax revenues within the District
available to the Company for a period of (5) years pursuant to a credit enhancement agreement, which is a contract
between the City and the Company. This pertion will be equal to 40 percent of the increased value of the real estate
(including buildings).

The remaining portion of the new real estate tax revenues (60 percent) and a portion of the new personal property tax
revenues (50 percent, exclusive of existing equipment moved to the new location) will be captured for a period of
twenty (20) years and used or held for use in connection with the Public Improvements. All remaining tax revenues
will become part of the City’s general tax revenues. After expiration of the five year period, the portion paid into the
City’s general fund will include the tax revenues previously retumed to the Company.

In July 1998, the City formed a TIF District to assist Transparent Audio, Inc. (the Company) in constructing a building,
real property improvements, and additional personal property acquisitions. During the first ten (10} years of the
Development Program, the City will capture one hundred percent (100%) of the increase in assessed value due to the
Real Property Improvements, allocating during years one through five, forty (40%) percent of the incremental
municipal tax increment revenues from the Real Property Improvements (the “Real Property Captured Tax Increment
Revenues”) to the Company pursuant to a credit enhancement agreement (“the Company Increment Portion™). The
agreement also provides that twenty percent (20%) of such revenues will be atlocated to the Company during years six
through ten. No part of the incremental revenues from the additional personal property will be returned to the Company
pursuant to the Development Program.

The Real Property Captured Tax Increment Revenues shall be calculated based on real property values in excess of the
City’s valuation of the District as of April 1, 1998 ($53,600). The Company Increment Portion will be used by the
Company either to pay costs of the Project directly or to pay debt service used to finance costs of the Project. The
Project costs financed with Real Property Captured Tax Increment Revenues wili represent only a portion of the total
costs of the Project. All additional costs of the Company in respect of the Project will be the responsibility of the
Company. After ten years, the Company will have no further right to the Company Increment Portion, and it will form
part of the City’s general revenues.

Saco Plaza, Inc. (the Company) has developed the real estate constituting the District and constructed an 80-100 room
hotet and allied facilities (conference facilities and restaurant) along with related physical improvements thereon (the
Project). The purpose of the District is to assist the Company in financing the costs of the Project, and to assist the City
in economic development in the North Street — Maine Turnpike area, and to assist in furtherance of the Industrial Park
Road expansion. During the first five (5) years of the Development Program, the City will capture 100% of the
increase in assessed value due to real and personal property improvements, allocating this captured incremental
municipal tax revenue between the Company (the “Company Incremental Portion™) and the City (“City Increment
Portion”) pursnant to a credit enhancement agreement between Company and City. 'The credit enhancement agreement
provides that forty (40} percent of the Captured Incremental Revenues during this initial five (5) year period will be
made available to the Company while sixty (60) percent of the Captured Incremental Revenues will flow to the City for
economic development purposes both in the North Street -- Maine Turapike area, and with expanding the Industrial
Park Road. During the final five (5) years of the Development Program, the City will capture only forty (40) percent of
the incremental increase in assessed values due to real and personal property improvements, allocating this revenue to
the Company pursuant to the credit enhancement agreement. The remaining sixty (60} percent of increased assessed
value will not be captured in the final five (5) years of the Project but will flow to the City’s General Fund.
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Note 9 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT, Continued

In March 2002, the City formed a TIF District (Spring Hill Municipal Development and Tax Incremental Financing
District) for the creation of a municipal development and tax increment-financing district within the Spring Hill section
of the Saco Industrial Park and adjacent areas. The adjacent areas include a portion of the railroad right of way for the
Saco Industzial Park, a portion of the proposed Saco 67 Business Park across Route 1 from the Spring Hill section, and
a portion of the Route 1 right of way where the installation of a traffic light and a sewer are contemplated. The goal of
this TIF district is to provide for the creation of serviced business park lots and to permit the purchase of land therefore,
to provide for additiona!l rail service to an existing industrial park, to provide for traffic improvements such as a traffic
light required by these industrial developments, and to provide for the installation of a public sewer system in an area of
industiial, business, and commercial zoning to enhance the facilities for business and industrial development. During

the first ten (10) years of the Development Program, the City will capture one hundred percent (100%) of the increase
in assessed value due to the Real Property Improvements, allocating all 100% to the Development Program. After the
tenth year, the tax revenues will flow into the City’s General Fand.

The Spring Hill TIE was amended on October 7, 2008. Boundary changes removed a 12 foot strip to the Scarborough
line and added one ot to the district. This lot is the site of a new IMAX theater. The TIF revisions also create a
mitigation fund for the fifth lane in Route 1, which MDOT plauns fo require for an IMAX theater ($118,000), and
extends the end date of the TIF 10 years beyond the original 2012 expiration to 2022.

The Park North TIF, approved September 12, 2007, is for 100% of the tax increment for 20 years, with 70%
reimbursing the developer for a sewer extension. The developer has paid for the costs and financing for the sewer
extension and for a pump station serving the project. This includes only large sewer mains, not local service mains
within the development. The sewer cost is estimated at $3.5 million, although financing may double the cost.
Reimbursement to the developer continues until the company is reimbursed. Itis estimated that it may take 11 years to
reimburse. The remainder of the TIF --30% in the early years, 100% later -- would be used by the City for a program of
improvements in the district and in the area of the project and some qualifying economic development projects.

The Industrial Park Road TIF was approved March 16, 2007, is for 100% of the tax increment through 2027. The entire
increment will be treated in a special fund by the City and used for construction of roads and sewers and sidewalks
including improvements to a portion of North Street and a portion of Industrial Park Road. A credit enhancement
agreement was reached with People’s Choice Credit Union on 3/20/09 to reimburse the company $100,000 for
intersection improvements, by reimbursing it 50% of its taxes each year until it receives the full $100,000 payout.

The Franklin Fuels TIF (Incon, Intelligent Controls), was approved on March 24, 2008. The TIF captures 100% of
captured assessed value. The agreement returns 45% of taxes to Franklin Fuels which erected a new industrial building
in which it manufactures fuel tank monitoring equipment and other electronic detection devices. The TIF retains 55%
for City public improvements and Economic Development programs through fiscal 2019.

The Saco Island Renaissance TIF was approved in September 2007. The Mattson Development entity, (formerly
Harpers), plans to complete approximately $80 million of mixed-use mill rehabilitation projects aver several years. This
TIF is for 95% of the new value for 15 years, and for 90% of the value for the following 15 years. Five percent and 10
percent of the project respectively remains unTIFed. The funds will be returned to the developer under a credit
enhancement agreement.
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Note 16 ~ TAX BASE SHARING WITH THE CITY OF BIDDEFORD

Tax base sharing is established under Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, to increase the likelihood
of orderly development and to provide an incentive for coordinated multi-community economic development by
permitting two or more communities to share their tax base. Any two or more municipalities may, by vote of their
legislative bodies, enter into an agreement to share all or a specific part of the commercial, industrial or residential
assessed valuation located within their respective communities. The shared valuation is assessed in the municipality in
which the property is located, taxed at the rate applicable in that municipality and collected by the respective
municipality. The share of the tax, as specified in the agreement, must be remitted within fifteen days to the other
municipalities on the basis of the terms of the agreement. For the fiscal year end June 30, 2007, the City of Saco's share
of the tax base sharing revenue was $92,506. The balance remains outstanding at June 30, 2009.

Note 11 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Lucia Kimball Deering Trust is related to the Kimball Health Center through common directorships. Beginning in
May 1986, the amount due to the Trust from the Kimball Health Center was being reimbursed at the rate of $500 per
month. However, the reimbursement amount is left to the discretion of the Board of Directors. No interest is charged
on this loan, which had an outstanding balance of $859,900 at Iune 30, 2009.

Note 12 -CLASSIFICATION OF NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCE
In the Government-wide financial statements net assets are classified in the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets. Net of Related Debt- This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one compaonent of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the oqtstandin g balances of
debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduces this category.
Restricted Net Assets- This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors
or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legisiation. This category presents restrictions placed on the categories of Capital Projects, and
Specific Projects and Programs as established by City Council.

Unrestricted Net Assets- Represent the net assets of the City, not restricted for any project or other purpose.

In the Fund financial statements, reserves and designations segregate portions of fund balance that are either not
available or have been earmarked for specific purposes. The various reserves and designations are established by
actions of the City Council and Management and can be increased, reduced or eliminated by similar actions. As of
June 30, 2009, reservations of fund balance are described below:

Reserved for Encumbrances- These reserves represent the portion of purchase orders and contracts awarded for
which goods and services have not yet been received.

Reserved for Prepaid iterns- These reserves represent the portion of insurance expenditures paid for policies
good through a future date,

Reserved for Capital Improvement Projects- These reserves represent specific projects and programs for which
the City has made a commitment towards completion through adoption of the City Budget and 5-Year Capital
Improvement Plan.

Reserved for Inventory- These reserves represent that portion reserved for the value of inventory at year end.
Reserved for Nonexpendable trust principal- These reserves represent that portion of originally contributed
trust fund assets restricted from disbursement.

Reserved for other purposes- These reserves represent that portion of Special Revenue Fund grants restricted
for grant intended purposes.
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Note 13 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

The City’s Special Revenue Fund for the Recreation Impact Fees, as well as the City’s Major Capital Project fund for
the Saco Island TIF and the Mill Brook Industrial Park and the non-major Greater Downtown TTF and Park North TIF
capital project fund are carrying forward fund deficits as of June 30, 2009. These deficits will be funded by futare
operations through anticipated revenues to be received.

Note 14 - RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Maine Public Employees Retivement System (Maine PERS) — Consolidated Plan

Deseription of the Plan - The City contributes to Maine Public Employees Retirement System (Maine PERS)
Consolidated Plan, a cost sharing muitiple-employer public employee retirement system established by the Maine State
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rests with the State
Legislature. The Maine Public Empioyees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report thatincludes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Consolidated Plan. That report may be obtained by
writing to Maine Public Employees Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333-0046 or by
calling 1-800-451-9800.

Funding Policy — Plan members are required to contribute 6.5% of their annual covered salary and the City of Saco is
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 0% of annual covered payroll. The
contribution rates of plan members and the City of Saco are established and may be amended by the Maine PERS
Board of Trustees. The City’s contributions (o the Maine PERS Consolidated Plan for the years ended June 30, 2009,
2008 and 2007 were $0, $0 and $0 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. This is due to the
fact that necessary contributions to the plan are being offset by existing credits.

Maine Public Employees Retirement System (Maine PERS) — Teacher’s Group

Description of the Plan — All school teachers, plus other qualified educators, participate in the Maine PERS’s teacher
group. The teacher’s group is a cost-sharing plan with a special funding situation, established by the Maine State
legislature. The Maine PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rests with the State
Legislature. The Maine PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Teacher’s Group. That report may be obtained by writing to Maine Public
Employees Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333-0046 or by calling 1-800-451-9800,

Funding Policy — Plan members are required to contribute 7.65% of their compensation to the retirement system. The
State of Maine Department of Education is reguired, by the same statute, to contribute the employer contribution which
amounts to $1,844,021 (18.76%) for the fiscal year 2009. This amount has been reported as an intergovernmental
revenue and education expenditure in the GAATF basis fund financial statements (Statement 4) as well as the entity wide
financial staternents (Statement 2). There is no conftribution required by the School except for federally funded
teachers, for which the School contributed 18.76% of their compensation. This cost is charged to the applicable grant
and amounted to $49,991 (18.76%) for the year ended June 30, 2009, $55,405 (18.71 %) for the yeay ended June 30,
2008, and $60,404 (19.14%;) for the year ending June 30, 2007.

Deferred Compensation Plan
In Leu of coverage under the Maine State Retirement System, City employees may elect to participate in a deferred

compensation plan adopted under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans
with Respect to Service for State and Local Governments).
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Note 14 - RETIREMENT SYSTEM., Continued

Under the plan, employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and avoid paying taxes on the deferred portion
until the withdrawal date. The plan vests at the end of two years of service and 100% at the end of three years. The
City expended $109,468 (5%) for the year ended June 30, 2009, $108,054 (5% for the year ended June 30, 2008, and
$193,772 (5%) for the year ended June 30, 2007. The deferred compensation amount is not available for withdrawal by
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

Assets of the plan are placed in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. Accordingly, the
assets and the liability for the compensation deferred by plan participants, including earnings on plan assets, are not
included in the City’s financial statements.

Other

Additionally, the City participates in the Social Security Retirement Program. The City's contribution to Social Security
was approximately $642,536 for the year ended June 30, 2009, $605,410 for the year ended June 30, 2008, and
$569,328 for the year ended June 30, 2007,

Note 15 - OTHER DISCLOSURES
Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and
omissions; and natural disasters for which the City either carries commercial insurance, or participates in a public entity
risk pool. Currently, the City participates in a public entity risk pool for its workers compensation insurance sponsored
by the Maine Municipal Association. Based on the coverage provided by the pool, as well as coverage provided by
commeicial insurance purchased, the City is not aware of any material actual or potential claim liabilities, which should
be recorded at June 30, 2009, There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from that of the prior year.
Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage for any of the past three fiscal years. The amount of unpaid
claims was $0 at June 30, 2009 and 2008.

Note 16 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Through the budget, the City Council sets the direction of the City, allocates its resources and establishes its priorities.
The Annual Budget assures the efficient and effective uses of the City’s economic resources, as well as establishing that
the highest priority objectives are accomplished. The City legally adopts annual budgets for the Governmental General
Fund and the Business-Type Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund.

The Annual Budget serves from July 1 to June 30, and it is a vehicle to accurately and openly communicate these
D
priorities to the community, businesses, vendors, employees and other public agencies. In addition, it establishes the
foundation of effective financial planning. The budget provides resource planning, performance measures and controls
4 getp g
that permit the evaluation and adjustment of the City’s performance.

The City of Saco, Maine’s budget is prepared and based on four expenditure categories; personnel, operations &
maintenance, other expenditures and capital improvement programs. The first three listed are considered operational in
nature or known as recurring costs. Capital Improvement Projects are asset acquisitions, facilities, systems, and
infrastructore improvements, etc. typically over $8,000, and/or those items “outside” of the normal operational budget,
these are known as one-fime costs.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds.

The City collects and records revenue and expenditures within the following categories:
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities
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Note 16 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION, Continued

The Governmental Funds include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Project Funds and the Permanent
Funds. All funding sources are kept separate, for both reporting and for uses of the money. The General Fund is where
most City services are funded that are not required to be segregated.

The budget process begins as a team effort in January of each year, starting with an annuval strategic planning meeting,
then from this, the individual departments use projected revenue assumptions to prioritize and recommend the next
fiscal year’s objectives. The City Administrator and the Finance Director review each budget proposal, revenue
assumptions and all current financial obligations, before preparing the proposed document to the City Council. The
City Council reviews the Proposed Budget, through a series of workshop meetings, with the final adoption scheduled
during the first council meeting in June.

Per City Charter, the level of budgetary control is at the department level. The following departiments overspent their
fiscal year 2009 budgets: City Administration by $2,976, City Clerk/Voter Registration/Welfare Assistance by
$23,933, Legal Services by $88,838, Public Works by $5,165, Parks & Recreation by $147,593, Adult Education by
$2,715, Employee Benefits by $3,781, Insurance by $927, Contingency by $22,265, and City Debt Service by $52,758.
These over expenditures were anticipated and in most cases had additional revenue to cover them. The overages lapsed
to undesignated fund balance at year end.

According to the City Charter, the departments are allowed to carry over unspent portions of their individual capital
budgets which then can be used in future years. For the Governmental Activities and the Business-type Activities of
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 the amounts carried over by the departments totaled $2,253,647 and
$3.481,440, respectively, with a like amount designated in the General Fund balance under the title of Restricted for
Capital Projects. The department totals were as follows:

Department Carryover
Governmental Activities:

Capital Improvement Projects $.2.253.647

Total Governmental Activities $2.253.647

Business-type Activities:

Waste Water Treatment Plant $ 2,435,448
Total Business-type Activities $ 2.435.448

See Statement 6 Within the Government-wide financial statements for a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual for an analysis of the original approved budget versus the final budget
and actual amounts.

Note 17 - INFTERFUND ACCOUNTS

Due from/to other funds at June 30, 2009 consist of the following:

Due from Due to
General Fund $ 6,513,997 $4312016
Special Revenue Funds 1,330,701 795,978
Capital Project Funds 690,363 342,979
Mill Brook Industrial Park Fand - 1,344,494
Saco Island TIF Fund - 2,362,116
Proprietary Funds 616,522 -
TOTAL $9.157.583 $9.157,583
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Note 17 - INTERFUND ACCOUNTS, Continued
Interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2009 consisted of the following:

Transfer In Transfer Out

General Fund $ 366,000 $ 830,148
Special Revenue Funds - 172,225
Capital Project Funds 315,389 -

Saco Island TIF Fund 390.984 70.000
TOTAL $1.072373 $1.072.373

The purposes of the due to/due from other funds are to charge revenue and expenditure activity to the appropriate
funds. With centralized cash, everything is received and disbursed through the general fund. With due to/due from
accounts, it allows the activity to be recorded within the proper fund, even though the activity occurs within the general
fund cash account.

The primary purposes of the transfers are to match budgeted amounts within the general fund from the funds financing
the various projects. Due to the fact that one budget is adopted; many projects from other funds are included in the
capital improvement section of the budget. These transfers allow for the revenue 1o be reflected within the general fund
where the expenditures have been budgeted and paid.

Note 18 - DESIGNATED FUND BALANCE

At June 30, 2009 and 2008, portions of the General Fund unreserved fund balance were designated by the School
Department as follows:

2009 2008
Reappropriated (o subsequent years budget $ 272.809 $763.528
Total designated $ 272.809 $763.528

Note 19 - NET ASSETS

Net Assets - Net assets represent the difference between assets and labilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net
of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds
and capital leases payable and adding back any unspent proceeds. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. The City's net assets invested in

&

capital assets, net of related debt was calculated as follows at June 30, 2009:

Governmental Business-type
Capital assets $ 89,062,774 33,016,760
Accumulated depreciation (33,450,396) (14,403,681)
Bonds payable (14,513,598) (1,630,000)
Capital leases (2,518,991) -
_Total invested in capital assets net of related debt _ §  38.579.789 16,983.079
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Note 20 - SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE REORGANIZATION

On June 6, 2008, and as amended in April of 2009, the Maine House and Senate enacted the two-year state budget
including the school administrative reorganization legislation “School Administrative Reorganization™ (“SAR™) as
Public Law 2008, Chapter 240. The law set forth state policy to ensure that schools are organized as units in order to
provide equitable educational opportunities, rigorous academic programs, uniformity in delivering programs, a greater
uniformity in tax rates, more efficient and effective use of limited resources, preservation of school choice and
maximum opportunity to deliver services in an etficient manner.

On November4, 2009, the State Department of Education approved the formationof Regional School Unit 23 (“RSU
23™), effectiveJuly 1, 2009. The voters approved an RSU board to replace the separate school boards for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2009. The consolidated school district consists of the Saco School Department, which currently
provides K-12 education; the Old Orchard Beach School Department, which currently provides K-12 education; and
the Dayton School Department, which currently provides K8 education.

Note 21 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) recently promulgatedits Statement45 which addressed the
reporting and disclosure requirements for other post employmentbenefits (OPEB). GASB Statement45, dccounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, was implemented, as
required, by the Cityof Saco for the year ended June 30, 2009. Under this pronouncement, it requires that the long-
term cost of retirement health care and obligations for other postemployment benefits be determined on an actuarial
basis and reported similar to pension plans.

The City is a member of the Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust. The Health Trust contracted with an outside
consulitant to assist in the detenmination and valuation of the City’s OPEB liability under GASB Statement45. An
OPEB liability actuarial valuation was completed by the consultants in May 2009.

Plan Descriptions—In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provideshealth care benefits for certain retired
employees. Eligibilityto receive health care benefits follows the same requirementsas MainePERS. Eligible retirees
are required to pay 100% of the health insurance premiums to receive health benefit coverage.

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost— GASB Statement4$5 does not mandate the prefunding of postemployment
benefits liability. The City currently plans to fund these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. No assets have been
segregated and restricted to provide postemployment benefits. The annual required contribution (ARC), an actuarial
determined rate, represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period noto exceed thirty years.

The following table represents the OPEB costs for the year and the annual required contribution:

Normal cost , $ 119,649
Amortization of unfunded 111,838
Interest 4.630
Annual required contribution $ 236,117

=23
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Note 21— OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued

Funding Status and Funding Progress — The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the year ending June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 236,117
Actual contribution -
Percent contributed 0.00%
Actuarial accrued liability $ 2,011,264

Plan asseis -
Unfunded actuarial accrued lability § 2,011,264

Covered payroll $ 8,386,002
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability
as a percentage of covered payroll 23.98%

Actuarial valuationsinvolve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events

in the future. Amounts determinedregarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the

employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The required schedule offunding progress presented as required supplementary information

provides multiyeartrend information (only one year available) that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is

increasing or decreasing over time elative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employerand plan members)and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the
pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City and plan membersat that point. Actuarial calculationsreflecta long-
term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued Habilities and the actuarial value of plan assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date 1/1/09
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
" Amortization method Level dollar

Remaining amortization period 30 years

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 4.0%
Projected salary increases N/A
Healthcare inflation rate 4.0% - 9.6%

Note 22 - RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETS

Fund Balance in the General Fund and Net Assets in the Governmentwide Financial Statements have been restated as
of July 1, 2008 as a result ofa correction of a prior year error. Fund Balance and Net Assets as of July 1, 2008 have
been restated as follows:

General Government-wide
Fund Financial Statements
Fund balance/net assets, as previously reported $ 7,969,765 42,789,888
Restatement— correction of a prior year error (957.126) (957.126)
Fund balance/net assets. as restated S 7.612.639 41.832.762
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MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS

It accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City is required to account for and report infrastructure capital assets,
The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets including the street system; water purification and
distribution system; sewer collection and treatment system; park and recreation lands and improvement system; storm
water conveyance system; and hailding site amenities such as parking and landscaped areas used by the City in the
conduct of its business. Each major infrastructure system can be divided into subsystems. For example, the street
system can be divided into conerete and asphalt pavements, concrete curbing, sidewalks, streetlights, traffic control
devices (signs, signals, and pavement markings}, landscaping, and land. Subsystem detail is not presented in these
basic financial statements; however, the City maintaing detailed information on these subsystems.

The City has elected to use the “Modified Approach” as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting
for its infrastructure assets. Under GASE Statement No. 34, eligible infrastructure capital assets are not required to be
depreciated under the following requirements:

e The City manages the eligible infrastructure capital assets using an asset nmanagement system with
charactenistics of (1) an up-to-date inventory; (2} perform condition assessments and summarize the results
using a measurement scale; and (3) estimate annval amount to maintain and preserve at the established
condition assessment level,

e The City documents that the eligible infrastructure capital assets are being preserved approximately at or above
the established and disclosed assessment level.

In 2000 (fiscal year 2001), the City commissioned a physical condition assessment of the streets which was completed
and dated February 2001. The City has completed a full condition assessment each year since 2001. Each street was
assigned a physical condition based on a set of criteria identified in a program developed by the State of Maine
Department of Transpertation (MEDOT) known as the Road Survey and Maintenance System (RSMS). A pavement
condition index (PCI}, a nationally recognized index, was assigned to each street and expressed in a continuous scale
from 0 to 100, where O is assigned to the least acceptable physical condition and 100 is assigned the physical
characteristics of a new street. The following conditions were defined and associated to a rating within our asset
management system:

Condition Rating Asset Management System Rating
Good 100-80 i
Fair 79-65 2
Poor 64-50 3
Substandard 49-() 4

The City’s Public works Departinent has been conducting condition assessments of each road in the fall of each year
since 2001. Based on there research and an analysis of the data compiled over the last 8 years, the City has determined
that on average a road needs to be overlaid, on average, every 12 years. The frequency and extent of the maintenance
will depend on factors such as traffic volume, the amount of truck traffic, road hase materials, and drainage conditions.
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MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

Based on a 12 year maintenance schedule the Public Works has determined that the paving needs will be approximately

13,900 tons per year. Attoday’s asphalt prices this would translate to a sustainable funding allocation of $861,800 per
year.

Pavement History
Due t©o a weak economy,

financial constraints, and a
doubling of the cost of
asphalt, the City has been 25,006

dropping below the 20,000 able Lavel oF ASphalt Tonnsg: PEN:
s R S

sustainable level for 15,000

maintaining the City's road 10,000

system.  While the road so00 00 A

systemt is still in relatively 0

good shape the average PCI
values of the roads has been
decreasing.

s Tons of Pavement = Sustainable kevel (T/yr)

In 2001 the City subcontracted with an independent engineering firm to inventory and performs a condition assessment
on all other City
Paving Funding infrastructure  assets.

FY02-FY 09 These condition
assessments were then
reviewed and updated
again in fiscal year

$800,000 2004 and 2008. These
$700,000 other infrastructize
$600,000 assets, sewer pipe, catch
$500,000 basins and manholes,
$400,000 .
$300,000 # Annual Funding Level S¥Oi‘m d?'a:.l?age,
$200,000 Sustalhable Funding Level sxdew'alks, traffic lights
$100,000 and signage, were then
$- combined with the

streets on the City's
Asset Management
System. Per the rating
system noted above,
each infrastructure asset
was assigned a

condition assessment based on 4 visual inspection conducted on each asset.
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MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

The City Policy is to achieve a minimum rating of 2 for all other infrastructure assets, which is consistent with that for
the streets. From June 30, 2001 through June 30, 2009, the City’s other infrastructure assets had established condition
assessment levels as follows:

FY 2001-2003 FY 2004-2006 FY 2007-2009 Management
Condition Average % of Other % of Other %o of Other System
Infrastracture Infrastructure Infrastructure Rating
Excellent to Good 68.0% 69.3% 80.0% 1
Fair 25.0% 25.0% 12.0% 2
Poor to Substandard 7.0% 5.7% 8.0% 3and 4

As of June 30, 2001 through June 30, 2003, the City had only 7% of its other infrastructure assets rated below the
established 2 rating. The City required several years to rehabilitate these segments of infrastructure. As is reflected
with the June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 condition assessment performed, an even lower immaterial percentage of other
infrastructure assets are now below the established policy level rating of a 2. As of June 30, 2007, 2008 and 2009 a
slightly larger percentage has fallen to poor to substandard even though a larger percentage are rated as excellent to
sood. Those segments that have fallen are mostly sidewalks and traffic signals.

The City is continuously taking actions to arrest the deterioration of other infrastructure assets through short-term
maintenance activities. The City has over the last year:
® Eliminated 1 Combined Sewer Overtlow Structure on Hobson Lane

e Replaced 700 feet of sewer on Beach Street

8 Finished replacing all street name signs in the City

° Improved radius geometry on James & Beach and Main & Beach sireets

o Upgraded the traffic signals at Water Street for video actuation

@ Replaced brick east and west sidewalk on Main Street between Beach and Cutts

e Replaced overhead utilities and installed new underground services and street lights of on Main Street

° Began construction of a new 5M control building at the Wastewater plant to replace a failed building

° Installed a 400,000 in erosion control measures on surf Street to protect City infrastructure from coastal
erosion

° Slip lined 1,100 feet of failing storm drainage on Main Street on Factory Island

As of June 30, 2009, the City had approximately 351,523 feet of sewer pipe with a carrying amount of $14,918,272 and
an estimated replacement cost of $32,080,875; 3,088 catch basins and manholes with a carrying amount of $2,308,563
and an estimated replacement cost of $6,450,689; 266,639 feet of storm drainage with a carrying amount of
$17,839,300 and a replacement cost of $27,127,105; 711,650 square feet of sidewalks with a carrying amount of
§1,630,130 and a replacement cost of $2,445,932; 148 traffic signals with a carrying amount of $795,155 and a
replacement cost of $1,260,000; and 991 street signs with a carrying amount of $44,818 and a replacement cost of
$69,370.
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Schedule of Funding Progress
Retiree Healthcare Plan

Actuarial UAALasa

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratic Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a) /¢]
06/30/09 § - $2,011,264 $2,011,264 0.00% $8,386,002 23.98%
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GENERAL FUND

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not
allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid the
general operating expenses, the fixed charges and the capital improvement costs which are not paid through other
funds.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Balance Sheet - General Fund

Exhibit A-1

June 30, 2609
2009
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,005,807
Investments 200,173
Accounts Receivable 1,138,115
Taxes Receivable:
Current Year 924,812
Prior Year 87,843
Tax Liens 290,264
Prepaid Items 210,116
Interfund Receivable 6,513,997
Tax Acquired Property 38,359
Total assets $ 13,429,488
EYABILETIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 1,419,086
Accrued Liahilities 1,604,824
Taxes Collected in Advance 22,844
Interfund Payable 4,312,016
Deferred Tax Revenue 1,017,048
Total liabilities 8,375,818
Fund Balance:
Reserved for Encumbrances 203,705
Reserved for Prepaid Items 210,116
Reserved for Capital Improvement Projects 2,253,647
Unreserved:
Designated - Subsequent years budget 272,809
Undesignated 2,113,393
Total fund balance 5,053,670
Total Habilities and fund balance 3 13,429,488




CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

General Fund

For The Year Ended June 36, 2009

Exhibit A2

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Real and Personal Property $ 27,550,603 27,722.016 173,113
Change in Deferred Propernty Revennes - 228,353) {228.333)
Excise Taxes 3,054,000 2,684,427 (369.573)
Iuterest and Lien Costs on Taxes 112,000 100,393 (11,407
Total taxes A0,716,5083 30,278,683 (438.220;
Licenses and Permits:
City Clerk Fees 83,000 82,530 (2,470)
Building Permits 525,359 353,837 (171.582)
Cable Television Franchise 255,000 275215 20,215
Plumbing Permits 49,139 13,624 (35.533)
Electrical Inspection Fees 42,753 2178 (15,026)
Snowmobile Registrations 2,500 2,992 492
Canine Licenses and Late Fees 7,200 8,158 38
Victwalers' License 8,000 5,695 (1,303}
Total licenses and permits 975011 770,718 (204,233)
Intergovernmental:
Srate Assistance:
Educstion 9,494,668 9,013,261 (481,407)
Adult Education 37,500 30,611 2,111
Medicaid Income (Net) 360,000 814,681 454 681
State Agency Clients 227,079 170,408 (56,671)
Revenue Sharing 1,550,000 1,444 817 (J05,183)
Loca} Road Assistance 262,700 260,24 (2,356)
Welfare Reinthursement 26,000 43,550 17.330
Hemestead Exemptions 349,880 350,360 420
Other State Ald 96.862 116,628 19,766
FEMA prant reimbursement - 269,091 299,091
Town of Scarborough - Reeyeling reimbursement 20,000 22,769 2,769
Goodwins Miils - Rescue reimbursement 15,000 16,125 1,125
MERC Host Community Besefits E 0,493 20,453
Tuaition and Other Charpes for Services - Education 904,166 779,198 (124 968)
Total intergovernmental 13,343,855 13,391,276 47,421
Charges for Services:
Police 35,0060 27,284 (7.786)
Community Policing-Themton Academy/Saco Middle G000 O6, 107 07
Public Works 433,500 238,169 (193.331)
Tipping Fees - 8.770 8,770
Transfer Station Fees 30,0600 43233 {7,767)
Sewer Inspection Fees 4,000 §.300 2,700
Recreation Depaniment 355,000 527,326 172,326
False Alarm Fines 20,000 19,973 (25)
Miscelaneous Fees 5,000 7.609 2,609
Total charees for services 3G8.500 968,773 (29.727)
Gther Revenues:
Interest Bamings 230,000 120,201 {129,799y
25,000 4,187 {20,813y
103,436 49,920 (53,516)
3 208,526 172,597 (35,9293
Planning/Zoning Board and Enginsering Studies TOO00 (2063 {70.206)
Recyeled Waste and Fees 25000 23,663 (1.337)
Unclassified 26,000 31,767 23,767
Total other revenues 707,962 422,129 {285,833)
TOTAL REVENUES 46,142,231 45 831,639 (910,592




CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
General Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2609

Exhibit A~2, Continued

Variance
Pasitive
Budget Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:
General Govemment:
Legislative $ 21,600 17,041 4,559
City Administration 265,809 268,785 {2,976)
Finance/Technology 833,062 FHIT 864 130,168
City Clerk/Vorer Registmtion/Welfare Assisiance 221,183 245,116 {23,933}
Assessor 182,725 164,131 18.594
City Building Mainfenance 116,214 114,638 1,576
Legal Services 113,000 203,838 (88,838}
Building Inspector 248,000 246,835 1,165
Planning 310,310 302,663 7.647
Total general government 2,318,903 2,270,911 47,592
Public Safety:
Police/Cental Dispatch 3,175,748 3,108,630 71,118
Fire/ Ambulance/Public Water 2,362,635 2,309,264 53,371
Total public safety 5,542 383 5417894 124 489
Pulbdic Works:
Administration/Mainienance 4,584,298 4,389,463 (5,165)
Tatal public warks 4,584,298 4,580 463 (3,185)
Cuhture and Recreation:
Parks & Recreation 023,682 1071275 (1475633
Total culture and recreation G23,682 1,071,275 (147,593)
Bducation (Excluding Debt Service and Nutrition):
Regular Education - K12 20,344,092 26,000,143 543,949
Aduelt Education 146,581 148,306 (2,715)
Total education 26,690,683 26,149,449 S41,234
Couniy Tax 1,020,912 1,020,912 -
Unclassified:
Employee Benefits 2,460,036 2,463,817 €3,781)
Insurance 179,425 180,352 92Ty
Public Agenties 562,523 521.868 40,660
Crnergeoey Management 6,743 6,527 25
Overlay TS0 - 32,00t
Conzingency 83,248 111,513 {22,265)
Total unclassified 4,049,991 3,284,077 63014
Erebt Service:
School Depantmenyg:
Principal 650,979 550,979 -
Interest 238,233 237,732 i H
City:
Principal 966,066 966,066 -
Interest 37 366,175 4308
Capitsl Lesses and Agent Fees 4317033 474 603 {57.36%3
Total debt service 2642797 {31,738}




CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

General Fund

For The Year Ended June 38, 2009

Exhibit A-2, Continued

Variance
Positive
Budget Actusl {Negative)
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Capital Projects:
Sidewalk improvement $ 154,660 & 41212 3 12,788
Street overlay/Road reconstruction - 175997 {175,997)
Stormn drainage projects 41,600 262 40,738
Simipson Read bridge 8.686 0,505 2,180
Assessing appraissl conversion “ 2,550 {2,550)
City signage - 7.632 {7,632)
Fadustrial Park Railrozd N 34,722 €34,722)
Camp Eilis capital - LAGH (1,400%
MDOT Grant Maich 30,000 5,327 44,673
Athletic fields at landfill - 11,168 (1§,168)
Laserfiche 2&3 35,146 10,201 24,945
Main & Beach No Signal - 20,742 (20,742)
City Hall roof repairs - 5,070 (5.070)
Conservation Projects 50,730 48,990 1,740
Route One Sewer Project - 14,057 (14,057}
Parks & Recreation radios 9,000 7,698 1.302
Tri-Commnnity Camera 4,600 (2,556} 6,556
Downtown Light Pole Bangers 20,000 19,772 228
Infrastructure hond projects - 364,357 (364,357)
Total Capital Projects 312,362 75,107 (402,545)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 48 146,211 47,274,642 §71.568
EXCESS (BEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER}
EXPENDITURES (1,403,580 {1,443.004) (39,024}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Budgeted Utilization of Surplus-City 798,170 - {791,170)
Budgeted Utilization of Surplus-School 763,528 - {763,528}
Carryover of Designated Fund Balance 146,511 . (146,511}
Transfers From:
Capital Projects Fund 45,000 45,000 -
Specizl Revenue Fund 321,000 321,000 -
Total other financing sources 2,067,205 366,000 (1,701,209
Transfers to:
Special Revenue Fund “ {E48,775y (148,773)
Capital Prajects Fund (663,229) {631,373y (18,144)
Total cther financing fuses) {663,229y (830,148) {166,916y
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Budgetary Basis $ - $ (1,807,152) % (1,807,132)
To adjust to Modified Accrual Basis-
Less~ teachers semmles salary acernal 3 (31 817)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE-
Modified Acerual Basis $ (1,958,969)
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Statement of Changes In Fund Balance - General Fund
For The Year Ended June 36, 2009

Exhibit A-3

Reserved Unreserved
Reserved for Designated to
Prepaid Subseguent Years' Subsequent Years'
Encumbrances {tems Expenditures Budget Undesignated Total
Fund balance - beginning of year $ 109361 8 572,792 § 343444 $ 763,528 § 3042646 3 T969,765
Prier period adjustment - - - - (957,126 E2 3’126)
Fund halance - beginning of year, as restated 109,361 572,792 3,481,440 763,528 2,085,518 7.012,639
Net change in fund balance 54,344 (362,676) (1,227,793) (499,719) 27,875 (1.938,969)
Fund balance - end of year $ 203,708 $ 210,116 $ 2,253,647 $ 272,809 $ 2,113,303 $ 5,053,670
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Exhibit B-1

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
{Combining Balanee Sheet - All Other Non-Major Governmental Fands
June 30, 2009
Total Other
Special Revenue  Capital Project Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 733,037 $ -3 15,114 & 748,151
Investments 58,484 1,314,144 392,854 1,965,482
Accounts Receivable (net) 1,137,788 - 700 1,138,488
Inventories and Other 43224 - - 43224
Notes Receivable (net) 14,287 - - 14,287
Interfund Receivables 1,330,701 696,363 - 2,027,064
Tois) assets 3,317,521 2,210,507 408,668 5,936,696
LIABILITIES AND FURND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 212,502 5,231 - 217,733
Accrued Wages 52,366 - - 52,366
Interfund Payables 795,978 342,979 - 1,138,957
Total liabilities 1,060,846 348,210 - 1,409,056
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Nonexpendable trast fund - - 181,383 181,383
Inventory 4,913 - - 4913
Other purposes 766,837 - - 766,837
Unreserved:
Undesignated 1,484,925 1,862,297 227,285 3,574,507
Total fund balances 2,256,675 1,862,297 408,668 4,527,640
Total liahilities and fund balances % 3,317,521 § 2218507 $ 408,668 $ 5,936,696
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CITY OF SACQO, MAINE
Combining Statement of Revenes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Al Other Non-Major Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2609

Total Other
Special Revenue  Capital Project Permanent  Governmental

Funds Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 2,378,772 % - 5 - % 2,378,772
Charges for services 867,721 - - 867,721
Interest Income 14,661 11,470 - 24,183 30,314
Other Revenues 457,378 - (158,239) 269,139
Total revenues 3,718,532 11,470 (134,056) 3,595,946
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Special Projects 80,451 - 22,398 102,849
Education 2,044,340 - - 2,044,340
Housing Programs 232,512 - - 232,512
Capital Expenditures 411,158 69,090 - 480,248
Total expendifures 2,768,461 69,090 22,308 2,850,949
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under} expenditures 950,071 (57,620) (136,454) 735,997
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS
Transfer (to) from General Fund (172.225) 290,389 ‘ - 118,164
Transfer (t0) from Capital Project Funds - 25,000 - 25,000
Total other financing sources (uses) (172,225) 315,389 - 143,164
Net change in fund balances 777,846 257,769 {156.454) 879,161
Fund balances - beginning of year 1,478,829 1,604,528 565,122 3,648,479
Fund balances - end of year $ 2,256,675 § 1,862,297 $ 408,668 $  4.527,640

82



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are established to account for resources obtained and expended for specified purposes that are
restricted by law or administrative action. Special revenue funds are established for the following purposes:

Recreation Impact Fees

To account for the impact fees collected for open space and other purposes from new residential construction
within the City.

Call Firemen Refirement
To account for funds budgeted and accumulated for the retirement program for the call firemen of the City of Saco.
Ambulance

To account for funds received from ambulance billing used for the maintenance, replacement, and other ambulance
related items.

Economic Development Fund

The monies in this fund are generated by repayments to the City from Urban Development Action Grant and
Development Fund loans to local businesses, and the sale of Saco Industrial Park lots. These monies are used to
support, improve, and expand the City's Industrial Park and to make revolving loans to businesses within the applicable
guidelines.

Saco Housing Agency

To account for funds provided by the Department of Housing and Urban Development under the Section 8 housing
assistance payments for low-income families.

School Categorical Grants

To account for various federal and state grants for special programs administered by the School Department.
School Lunch Program

This fund accounts for the operation of the school nutrition program at the various schools.

Saco Skate Park

To account for local contributions received for constructing a skate park in Saco.

Wellness Grant

To account for funds received under a Maine Municipal Association Grant.

Planning Board Improvements

To account for contributions by developers for improvement to City infrastructure.



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, CONTINUED

Fire Reserves

To account for donations received by the Fire Department for specific restricted purposes.
Jump Start Grant

To account for grant funds received.

Police Arrest Forfeiture Fund

To account for funds derived from direct arrests and/or joint investigation activities, some of which lead to the
forfeiture of cash or property to the City.

Joe Riley Memorial Park

To account for local contributions received for the purpose of creating a memorial park for Joe Riley.
Emergency Management

To account for donations received for specific purposes for theCity’s emergency management initiatives.
Saco Community Garden

To account for funds to be used for the creation of a garden following organic practices, provide affordable garden plots
for growing healthy foed and flowers, supporta community of gardeners and promote a green and sustainable Saco.

Camp Ellis

To account for funds derived from parking, boat landing fees and boat mooring/pier use permits at Camp Ellis Pie
These funds are expended for parking lot attendants and repairs and improvements to the Pier.

Front Street Park

To account for local and federal (Waterfront Action Grant) funds received for the construction of a riverside park on
Front Street. Local funds are provided by a combination of general fund revenues and donations.

Lucia Kimball Deering Trust
To account for expendable trust fund monies.
Cascade Trails

To account for funds dedicated to creating and providing active and passive recreational opportunities.



CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Special Revenues Funds

Exhibit C-1

June 38, 2009
Recreation Call Economic Saco School School
Impact Firemen Development Housing Categorical Lunch
Fees Retirement Ambulance Fund Agency Grants Program
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents S - kA - kY 34,935 kY k3 38,704 3 128,240 b 105,584
Iavestments - - 43,361 123 - - -
Accounts Receivabie (net allowance of $25,000) - - 121,427 - 222 137,587 18,652
Inventorics and Other - - - - - - 4,913
Notes Recetvable (net allowance of $7,142) - - - 14,287 - . -
Interfund Receivables - 44,550 - 225,974 - 680,692 13,460
Total assets - 44,550 219,723 240,384 58,926 947,519 142,609
LIABILITIRS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 45,212 - 54,378 - 173 85,553 12,760
Accrued Wages - - - - - 49,227 900
Interfund Pavables (649,372 - 48,182 - - 45902 25,081
Total liabilities 694,584 - 102,560 - 173 180,682 38,741
Fund Balances (Deficits):
Reserved for:
Inventory - - . . . B 4915
Other purposes - - - - 766,837 -
Unreserved:
Undesignated {694,584) 44,550 117,163 240,384 58,753 - 98,935
Total fund balances {deficits) {694, 5843 44,55() 117,163 240,384 58,753 766,837 103,808
Total lizbilities and fund balances 5 - § 44,558 ) 218,723 $ 240,384 $ 58,526 % 947,519 % 142,609

Continued on following page.



CITY OF SACQO, MAINE

Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Special Revenues Funds

Exkibit C-1 (Continued)

June 30, 20069
Saco Planning Jump Police Arrest
Skate Wellness Board Fire Start Forfeiture Joe Riley
Park Grant Improvements Reserves Grant Fund Memorial Park
ASSLETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ - $ - b - $ - $ - b 541 b3 1,789
investments - - - - - - -
Accounts Receivable (net allowance of $25,000) - - - - - - -
Inventories and Cther - - - - - - -
Notes Receivable (net allowance of $7,142) - - - - - - -
Intecfund Receivables 1,422 15,433 65,680 2,398 1,535 69,966 -
~ Total assets 1,422 15,433 65,680 2,398 1,535 70,507 1,789
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - 2,047 - - - 2,964 -
Accrued Wages - - - - - - -
Interfund Payables - - 26,590 - - - 851
Total liabilities - 2,047 26,590 - - 2,964 851
Fund Balances (Deficits):
Reserved for:
Inventory - - - - - - -
{ther puposes - - - - - - -
Unreserved:
Undesignated 1,422 13,386 39,000 2,398 1,535 67,343 938
“Total fund balances (deficits) 1,422 13,386 ' 39,090 2,398 1,535 67,543 938
Total habilities and fund balances $ 1,422 $ 15433 $ 65,080 $ 2,368 $ 1,535 $ 78,507 $ 1,789

Continued on following page.
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Exhibit C-1 (Continued)

CETY OF 5AC0O, MAINE
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Special Revenues Funds

June 30, 2009
Emergency Saco Front Lucia Kimball
Management Community Camp Street Peering Cascade Totals
Grands Garden Fils Park Trust Trails 2009
ASSTTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents ) - 5 - 5 400 3 - 8 381,844 $ - ) 733,037
Investments - - - - 15,06G - 58,484
Accounts Receivable (net allowance of $25,000) - - - - 859,900 - 1,137,788
Inventories and Other - - - - 38,311 - 43,224
Notes Receivable (net allowance of $7,142) - - . - - - 14,287
Tnterfund Receivables 3,832 200 175,400 150 - 30.000 1,330,701
Total assets 3,832 200 175,800 159 1,295,055 36,0060 3,317,521
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 298 65 2,676 - - 6,376 212,502
Accroed Wages - - 2,239 - - - 52,366
Interfund Pavables - - - - - 795,978
Total liabililics ) 298 63 4915 - - 6,376 1,060,846
Fund Balances (Deficits):
Reserved for
Inventory - - - - - - 4,913
Other purposes . . , . ) ) 766.837
Unreserved:
Undesignated 3,534 135 170,885 159 1,295.055 23,624 1,484,925
Total fund balances {(deficits) 3,534 135 170,885 159 1,295,055 23,624 2,256,675
Total Habilities and fund balances $ 3,832 % 280 $ 175,800 % 159 $ 1,295,055 $ 34,060 $ 3,317,521




CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances (Beficit) - Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

For The Year Ended June 30, 2069

Exhibit C2

Recreation Call Economic Saco School School
Impact Firemen Development Housing Categorical Lanch
Tees Retirement Ambulance Fund Agency Grants Program
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 5 - 3 - 5 - S - $ 246,830 $ 1,734,408 $ 327,010
Charges for Services 36,758 - 616,253 150.000 - - -
Interest Income - ity 771 1 - .
Other Revenue - - . 5810 . 68,113 374,443
Total revenues 36,753 772 617,024 155,820 246,830 1,802,521 701,453
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Special Projects ) ) i 3 _ .
Education . - . . 1,396,475 647,865
Housing Programs ) ) ) ) 232,512 ~ B
C&?’“Efi }fﬁ?‘“““dfj‘zs _ 236,662 . 79,496 52,500 - - -
ol Cxpencinre 736562 - 79,496 32,500 732,512 1,396,475 647.865
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures i o
VeT \nncer) SXp - (199.904) 772 537,528 103,320 14318 406,046 53,588
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS
Transfer {10} from General Fund . 140.775
_Transfer (to) from Special Revenue Fund - 8,000 (300,000) (20,000) - 40,770 i
‘Total other financing sources (uges) i " - - - _,_' -
- 8,000 (300,000) (20,000} - 140,775 -
Net change in fund balances o
(199,904) 8,772 237,528 83,320 14,318 546,821 53,588
Fund balances (deficits) ~ beginning of year
S e 494.680) 35,778 (120,365) 157,064 44,435 220,016 30,280
Fund balances (deficits) - end of year .
3 (694,584) § 44,550 S 117,063 $ 240384 $ 58,753 $ 766837  § 103,868

Continued on following page.
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Exhibit C-2 {Continued)

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances (Deficit) - Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Saco Planning Jump Police Arrest
Skate Wellness Board Fire Start Forfeiture Joe Riley
Park Grant Improvements Reserves Grant Fund Memorial Park
REVENUES
Intergovernmental & - % - & - $ - $ - kY 70,524 b -

Charges for Services - - - 3 . .
Interest Income - - - - - -
Other Revenue - 4,623 - 621 - .

‘Potal revenues - 4,623 - 621 - 70,524

Ln

EXPENDITURES
Current;
Special Projects - - - - - - -
Hducation . - - - . . -
Housing Programs - - - - - . -
Capital Expenditures - - - - - 472 500 .
Total expenditures N - - - - 42,500 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - 4,623 - 621 - 28,024 5

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS
Transfer (to) from General Fund - - -
Transfer (to) from Special Revenue Fund - - 260,000y - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - {20,000) - - _ - -

Net change in fund balances - 4,623 (20,000} 621 - 28,024 5

Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of year 1,422 8.763 59,090 LT 1,535 39,519 933

Fund balances (deficits) - end of year 4 1,422 $ 13,386 $ 39,090 $ 2,398 67,543 $ 938

<5
b
wn
W
n
o

Continued on following page.
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Exhibit C-2 (Continued)

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances (Deficit) - Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2069

Emergency Saco Front Lucia Kimbal
Management Community Camp Street Deering Cascade Totals
G;‘ﬂnts Garden Ellis Park Trust Trails 200%
REVENUES
Intergovermmental 5 - % - 8 - $ - $ - $ - 3 2,378,772
Charges for Services - - 64,710 - - - 867,721
Interest Income - - - - 13,112 - 14,661
Other Revenue - 135 - - - 3,624 457,378
Total revenues - R 135 64,710 - 13,112 3,624 3,718,532
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Special Projects 298 - 59,968 - 20,185 - 80,451
Education - - - - - - 2,044,340
Housing Programs - - - - - - 232,512
Capital Expenditures - - - - - - 411,158
Total expenditures 298 _ - 59,968 - 20,185 - 2,768,461
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (298) 135 4,742 - (1,073} 3,624 950,071
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) OF FUNDS:
Transfer (to) from General Fund - - {1,000) - - - (172,225
Transfer (to) from Special Revenue Fund - - - - I 20,000 -
v vaotal othc;' fi,f?f‘?*?if_l‘% sources (uses) v - - (1,000 - - 20,000 (172,225}
Net change in fund balances {(298) 135 3,742 - (7,073 23,624 777,846
Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of year 3,832 - 167,143 159 1,302,128 - 1,478,829
Fund balances (deficits) - end of year $ 3,534 3 135 § 176,885 3 159 $ 1,295,055 $ 23,624 $ 2,256,675
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital projects fund are established to account for resources obtained and expended for the acquisition of major capital
facilities. The City's individual capital project funds were established for the following purposes:

Spring Hill TIF Project

To account for public improvements to the Spring Hill Industrial Park, in conjunction with a private development
project. A tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements.

First Light TIF District

To account for public improvements to the First Light Company, in conjunction with a private development project. A
tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements.

Transparent Audio TIF District

To account for public improvements to the Transparent Audio Co. in conjunction with a private development project. A
tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements.

Saco Plaze TIF Disirict

To account for public improvements to the Saco Plaza LLC in conjunction with a private development project. A tax
increment finance district bas been established to finance the public improvements.

Greater Downtown Improvements

To account for public improvements in the greater downtown area as identified in the Revitalization Plan for Saco
Island and Downtown Saco.

Incon/Franklin Fuels TIF

To account for public improvements to Franklin Fuels in conjunction with a private development project. A tax
increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements and economic development
programs.

Park North TIF Project

To account for public improvements to the Park North Development, 1.L.C in conjunction with a private developinent
project. A Tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements.

Industrial Park Road TIF
To account for public improvements to a portion of North Street and a portion of Industriai Park Road.

Open Space Bond Issue
To account for the bond proceeds received and the expenditures of the authorized open space parcels of land.

Landfill Fud

To account for the post closure costs of the City’s completed landfiil.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
June 34), 2009

Exhibit D-1

First Light Transparent Saco Plaza Greater Incon/
Spring Hill Tir Audio TIF TIF Downtown Franklin
TIF Project Project Praject Project _ Improvements Fuels TIF
ASSETS
Investments $ - 8 49,000 $ 11,294 $ 314 $ - S -
Interfund Receivables 266,353 111,829 3,079 - - 3,032
Total assets 266,353 160,829 14,373 814 - 3,032
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities;
Accounts Payable - - - - - -
Interfund Payables - - - - 52 -
_Total liabilities - - N - 52 N
Fund Balances (Deficit)
Unreserved:
ndesignated 266,353 160,829 14,373 8§14 {523 3,032
Total fund balances (deficits) 266,353 160,829 14,373 §14 (52 3,032
‘Total liabilities and fund balances 4 266,353 % 160,829 $ 14,373 $ 8§14 $ - 5 3,032

Consinued on following page.



CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Combining Balance Sheet « Non-Major Cupital Projects Funds

Exhibit I3-1 {Continued)

June 30, 2009
Park North Endustrial Park Open Space Landfill Totals
TIF Project TIF Project Bond issue Fund 2069
ASSETS
Investments % - 3 - $ - 3 1,453,036 % 1,514,144
Interfund Receivables - 04,284 217,786 - 656,362
Total assets - 94,284 217,786 1,453,036 2,210,307
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 5,231 - - . 5,231
Interfund Pavables 60,013 . - 282,914 342,979
Total Labilities 65,244 - - 282,014 348,210
Fund Balances (Deficit)
Unreserved:
Undesignated (65,244 94,284 217,780 1,170,122 1,862,297
Total fund bajances (deficits) (63,244) 94,284 217,786 1,170,122 1,862,297
Total Habilities and fund bajances $ - % 94,284 $ 217,786 $ 1.453,036 $ 2,210,507
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Non~-Mujor Capital Projects Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit .2

First Light Transparent Saco Plaza Greater Incon/
Spring Hill THF Aundio TIF TIF Dewntown Franklin
TEF Project Project Project Project Improvements Fuels TIF
REVENUES
Interest Income & -5 723 % 167 3 12 $ - $ -
Other revenue - - B - - -
Total revenues - 723 167 12 - -
EXPENDITURES
Proiect Costs _ - - - 31,764 - -
Total sxpenditures - - - 31,764 - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - 723 167 (31,752} -
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) OF FUNDS
ransfer from (to) General Fund 157,812 20,767 2,413 31,763 - 3,032
Transfer {rom {to) Capital Project Fund (271,061) - - = -
Total other financing sources (ases) (113,24%) 20,767 2,413 31,763 - 3,032
Net change in fund balances (113,249 21,490 2,580 11 - 3,032
Tund balances (deficits) - beginning of year 379,602 139,339 11,793 803 (52)
Fund balanees (deficits) - end of year $ 266,353 % 164,829 % 14,373 % 814 $ (s2) % 3,032

Continued on following page.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Non-Major Capital Projects Fund

For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit D-2 (Countinued)

Park North Industrial Park Cpen Space Landfill Totals
TIT Project TI¥ Project Bond Issue Fund 2009
REVENUES
lnterest Income 3 - § - 3 - $ 10,568 $ 11,470
Other revenue - - - - -
Total revenues - - - 10,568 11,470
EXPENDITURES
Project Costs 5,231 25 - 32,0670 69,000
Total expenditires 5,27 23 - 32,070 69,090
Excess {deficiency) of revenuss
_over (under) expenditures {5,231} {253 - {21.502) (57,620
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) OF FUNDS
Transfer from (to) General Fund 3,231 69,371 - - 290,389
Transfer from (to) Capital Project Fund - 296961 - - 25,000
Total other financing sources (uses} 5,231 365,432 - . 315,389
Net change in fund balances - 365,407 - (21,502 237,769
Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of year { 65‘244} (271,123 217,786 1,191,624 1,604,528
Fund balances (deficits) - end of year % 65,244) % 94,284 $ 217,786 $ 1,176,122 $ 1,862,297
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PERMANENT FUNDS
City of Saco Permanent Fund

To account for assets received by the City and held in trust.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Balance Sheet - Nou-Major Permanent Funds

Exhibit E-1

June 36, 2669
City of 5aco
Permanent
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 15,114
Investments 392,854
Accounts Receivable 700
Total assets 408,668
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Fund Balance:
Principal 181,383
Unexpended Income 227,285
Total fund balances 408,668
Total liabilities and fund balances § 408,668
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Exhibit E-2

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chanages in Fund Balances
Non-Major Permanent Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

City of Saco

Permanent
Funds
REVENUES
Interest and dividends S 24,183
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (158,239
Total revenues {134,056)
EXPENDITURES
Administrative expenditures 22,398
Total expenditures 22,398
Net change in fund balances (156,454)
Fund balances - beginning of year 565,122
Fund balances - end of year $ 408,668
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds

To account for the activity in the Middle School Student Activity Funds.
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Exhibit F-1

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For The Year FEnded June 36, 2009
Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Additions Deletions June 38, 2609
ASSETS
Cash and cash eqguivalents 3 131,154 132,274 136,600 126,828
Total assets $ 131,154 132,274 136,600 126,828
LIABILITIES
Due to student groups 131,154 132,274 136,600 126,828
Total liabilities $ 131,154 132,274 136,600 126,828
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Saco’s comprehensive annual financial repost presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements and note disclosure says about the City’s overall
financial health.

Contents Pages
Financial Trends 107-111

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader vnderstand
how the government’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over fime.

Revenue Capacity 112-115

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s
most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 116-119
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 120-124
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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Tahle 1

CITY GF SACO, MAINE

Net Assets by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)
{accryal basis of aecounting)y

Fiscal Year

2801 2602 2003 2004 2005 2006 20067 2008 2069
Guvsmmental Activities
Invesied in capital assets, net of related debi $ 26411922 § 27123736 % 29040076 § 31067773 § 35060403 § 37503942 5 32367887 $ 34636200 § 38,579,789
Permarent find principal 181,283 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 81,383 181,383
Other pusposes 301,264 345,844 301,677 273,270 228,138 250,625 308,738 220016 766,837
& arl 10,951,645 11.973.688 5.87%.061 BETLITD 4.538,456 8,061,556 8303,871 1,752,250 4441434
Total gov nial activitdes net agsers 3 37,856,214 § 39624642 § 39402397 § 40395305 ¢ 41037980 § 42087306 § 4LI61.87Y § 42780838 3§ 31059403

$ 6276757 S 5805014 %3 5684800 5 5341002 § 1034511 0§ 382L145 § 14335781 % 16688747 § 16983070

3,377,674 3,462,433 3,280,868 ¢ 7,628,653 5.071.893 1,208 451 1,512,925 663,026

Tota] bustness-type sciivities net assets § 9534431 § 9267447 § B045,668 § 8856271 § 8,663,574 S B8RE3H3R § 1R154272 § 18202,192 § 17,646,105
Total Primery Government

EJWVCSlcancapim! assels, set of related debt $ 32688679 5 32928740 & 34704876 § 35,408,775 % 37,003914 § 41415087 § 49,223,668 § SI,323476 % 55,562,468

ranest fusd prineipal 181,283 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 1§1.383

Qther purposes G124 345,844 01677 229138 230,625 308,738 220516 766,837

Unzesisicted 14239313 15436122 i3,159.929 12, 9 13387019 11133449 9,602,352 9.265.295 5.104.440

TVOFR R GE B BE30IS $ 47410645 § 48892080 § 48347865 % 49351867 § 49751554 § 52080544 € 359316,151 % 60992080 § 61615528

(1) Fiscel year 2001 e the inftiat year of implemeniation of GASB Statericnt Na. 34,




CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Chasgs in Net Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)
{accrual basis of aceounting)

Table2

Governmental activities:
Expenses
Geaeral Govemment
Public Safety
Public Works
Housirg Programs
itre 2nd Recreaticn

Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Cenera] Govermment
Pablic Safety
Pable Works
Cuitore aad Recyeation
Edacation
COpesating Grants and Contibutions
Caplial Grants and Contibutions
Totel gavernmentel activities program revenues

Net {expense)revenue, governmantal activises

General Resenues and Other Changes in Net Assets

Tuxes

L puTpUses

Giher 5t
City of B
Simte revenue s
Unrestrictea invesiment camings
M Qus revenues
Transfers
Total povernmental activities genersl revengesfother f

12

Extraordinary ltem
Legal sexlement
Total extraordinary ltem

Change in Net Agsels - Gavernmentat activities
Business-type Activities:

Expenses
Wasie Water Tn

Total business-type activides program revenues
Net fexpenseiirevenue, husiness-type activities

General Revenues and Gther Changes in Net Assets
Unrestricted investment eamings
Miscellaneous revenves
Transfers

Total husiness-type activiiies general revenvestother chnnaes

Change In Net Assets - Business-type activities

{1) Fiscr] year 2001 is the in

Fiscal Year

001 2602 2003 2604 2005 2006 2007 2008 2002
$ 1703318 § 2082612 § 2558143 § 2545843 § 2647040 T 2939837 § 2470661 5 23883585 § 2,283 447
3,876,117 4,288,353 4,541,135 4,438,847 4,883,614 4,844,961 5,082,323 5,401,015 5,667,340
3068339 3.097,678 3,393,351 3,591,566 4,586,385 3,709.877 4,588,755 4,369,642 4,399,733
175,964 170,247 200,651 205,501 272,246 239,010 254,352 256,359 232,512
360,045 388,018 465,567 526,806 677,645 825,222 915,311 1,008,763
20,202,081 20,317,080 71,685,656 23,582,205 26,993,528 28,072,031 29.615,18% 30,038,189
3,067,765 3,569,709 3,155,801 2,794,527 3,102,207 3.878.749 4.407,838
660,783 1,153,235 1,610,259 587,724 ; 943,692 1,078,515
4,453 847476 2,219,000 2,040,635 788.251 _
36.914,608 39820633 45,265 681 48.607.133 45,615,330
365,800 430,754 517,508 804,271 969,748 875,832 860,981 151,567 702,856
315,608 383,788 403,188 319,482 418,685 528,360 510,085 534,750 755,619
469,526 521,732 572,310 563,154 485,365 $55,752 510,403 381,546 314,135
75,630 26,641 152,631 251,904 323471 380,264 464,167 532,634 628,794
743,257 783,005 539,776 791,341 965,182 1,262,613 1,138,301 1,203,550 1,221,754
9,417,682 4,479,506 9,811,267 10,716,936 10,920,455 12,240,627 14,082,391 13,769,631 14,551,110
2,629,681 2,584,728 1,271,272 1,027,926 1437216 334,586 961,625 300,820 8
13,951,884 14280194 13374353 14,475,014 15,468,173 17,247,034 18,467,627 17,396,308 18,9
(22,547.011)  (22,634214)  (26433280) (25650692 (28.681,056)  (28,048,647) (2R0%7.068)  (30,610.735) (30,6
17,674,814 14,225,731 21,340,213 23,444,238 24632416 27,822,609
2,338,622 2,388,873 2,763,999 2,883,127 2,516,982 2,684,427
£5.006 §5.43¢8 167212 185,477 234,341 275,215
566,490 525682 288,286 242,190 323,435 151 350,366
15447 56,12 127,416 35,752 45444 3 116,628
142,032 i 301,601 146,591 169,527 i -
1,448,657 } 468,881 1448363 1,454,903 3 1,444,817
324,044 161,476 216,963 265,164 13 170,515
/ 61,069 42,563 2,179 20,705 153,223 386,390 (106,471)
211,396 205000 417953 660,933 439,245 - - -
23,548,571 24,402,642 26232835 26879600 29323440 79166923 30.121.782 32,238,744 32,758.040
- - - - 1,671,98) - -
- - - - - - 1,671,589 - -
3 1002560 8 1768428 $ (222445) S 1228508 § 642384 § 1118276 § 2206703 S 1628000 § 2,136.661
N $ LE39RTS 8 18E6353 3 IGITGO0 § 2081515 8 1766445 $ 2329012 §  2265.413 5 2342255
1,859.87% 1,886.353 1617800 2,091,518 1,766,445 2329012 2.265.113 2.342,253
1,684,551 1,726,084 1,730,765 1,686,485 2,411,039 2,405,869 7,852,749 2218457 1.739.381
81.847 - . . - R 3 . .
1,766,178 1,726,984 1,720,763 1,580,486 2411038 2,405,869 2,052,743 2,218,457 1,739,381
(7294583 (132,855) ;. 3614386 119,520 639,434 (276,263 {46,656} (602,874)
64,276 48,456 42,47) 37,983 38,159 45056 62,726 89,842 38,054
9,420 2,458 6,682 27,086 9,657 4179 4,502 4,732 8,733
£211,356) (205,000} (205,344} (417,952) (560.033) {459,240; - - -
_ (17,700 (134,089 (156,181) (352,583} (612,217) (409,960} £7,028 4,576 46,787
3 (867,10%) § (286580 $ (321,779 § ICE03 5 (292.697) § 225,464 S (268.235) $ 47,520 §  (355.087)

w6 GAST Staten

ut No, 34,

-
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

{accrual basis of accounting)

Table 3

Interest &

Fiscal Year Property Costs on Excise
ended Taxes Taxes Taxes Total
June 30, 2001 $ 17.674,815 § 125,858 S 2,232,764 $ 20,033,437
June 30, 2002 S 19225731 % 126487 § 2,388,878 §$ 21,741,096
Tune 30, 2003 $ 20483851 §% 101,285 § 2,532,092 § 23,117,228
June 30, 2004 $ 21,340,211 % 134,534 § 2,763,999 % 24,238,744
June 30, 2003 § 23,444,228 % 133,830 § 2,883,127 § 26,461,185
June 30, 2006 $ 23,198,393 3§ 92,790 % 2,904,735 3 26,196,118
June 30, 2007 $ 24632416 § 109,425 % 2,916,962 § 27,658,803
Tune 30, 2008 3 26,612,756 3 89,857 3 2,854,280 29,556,933
June 30, 2009 $ 27,722,016 % 100593 § 2,684,427 S 30,507,036

(1) Fiscal year 2001 is the initial year of implementation of GASE Statement No. 34
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Fund Balances of Governmental Fonds
Last Ten Fiscal Years (3}
{mudified accroal basis of acreunting)

Table 4

Fiscal Year

2001 2082 2003 2004 2605 2006 2007 2008 2002
General Fund
Reserved for:
Encumbrances & 226954 % 83,332 § 78,483 $ 152407 % 144,980 § 2i2,118 & 94700 § 169,361 § 203,705
Prepaid izemmns 110,635 120,961 204,389 549,273 176,006 159,715 574,292 572,792 210,116
Capital improvements 2,083,385 3,746,641 1,598,861 1,120,488 1,007,286 912,472 1,657,832 3,481,440 2,253,647
Usnreserved 5,592,620 6,040,111 4,057,992 3,923,723 4,848,529 5,074,180 4,294,605 3,806,172 2,386,202
Total General Fund S 8423504 § 8991045 § 6339725 § 574589 § 6,177,101 S 6418089 &  6621,529 $ 7,960,765 § 5053670
Afl other governmental funds
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 76,703 9,904 62,560 - - “ - - -
Noncurrent notes receivable 168,881 68,312 21,430 21.430 - - - - -
Nanexpendable trust principal 1%1,382 1%3,343 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383
Inventory . 11,278 2983 16,765 8,776 1,381 1,513 1,570 4,913
Other purposes 301,264 345,844 01,677 237,075 220,35¢ 250,625 308,738 220,616 166,837
Uareserved, reported in:
Special revenae funds 1,605,355 521,494 1,233,916 1,522,457 1,610,085 2,133,056 2,043,550 1,257,243 1,484,925
Capital project funds 380,742 1,105,150 044,366 1,110,910 405,968 170,368 (314,836} (1497,91%) (1,898,297
Permanent funds 376,652 296,718 283,704 344,609 380,013 413,424 316,812 383,739 227,285
Tuezl all other governmental funds § 3004580 % A0 RTL § 3039010 § . 3434629 5 3106587 §  3SD217 § 3737587 % 546,032 § 767,046

{1y Fiscal yaer 2001 Is the initial year of implementation of GASE Statement No.

24
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmentzd Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Iy
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Al Govermmental Funds

Revenues
Property taxes
Licenses and pennits
Intergovernimental
Intergovernmental on-behalf payments
Chizrges for ervices
Qther reveans

Total Governmentad Fund revenves

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Fablic works
Housing programs
Culture and recreation
Education
Maine PERS on-behalf payments
Lnclassified
County Tax.
Dbt Service

ipal
Interest and other charges
Capital Improvements
Tota) Gevernmeantal Fund expenditiores

Other financing sourees (nses)
Transfers in
Proceeds from capital lense financing

Proczeds from advance refunding of debt
Payment from advance reflunding of dely

Bond proceads
Fransfers out

Tetal Governmental Fund other flaancing sources (usesy

Extraordinary ites
Legal settfoment
Tot! extraordinery ftem

fet change in fund balance

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital
prpendies

{1 Fiscal year 2001 is the initial year of implementation of GASH ¢

Fisca) Year

Fabie

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 7006 2007 2008 2009
20,144345 § 21633468 $ 22,593,956 $ 24278842 § 25703395 § 25,196,118 § 27606860 § 20258042 § 30278683
202,555 321,797 460,663 666,654 528,806 767,288 721,514 697,994 710778
13,705,062 14,349,885 13,139,370 12,531,595 13,011,645 14,696,750 15,563,796 14,944,449 15,770,048
1,233,881 1,380,823 1472616 1,400,456 1,414,243 1,575,420 1,706,698 1,744,847 1,844,021
1,274,967 1,250,668 1,465,385 1,120,684 1,237,312 1,551,849 1,612,758 1,475,024 1,836,494
1,983,139 814,350 1,218,247 965,526 1,178,383 1,084,282 1,072,683 1,215,893 771,583
38,634,840 39731031 40,751,188 40076760 43373790 45,872,207 48,381,303 30336258 SE271607
1,276,783 1,367,308 1,665,735 1,702,939 1,779,876 1,585,467 2,356,249 2,167,619 2270911
3,614,790 4,002,935 4,108,832 4,074,543 4,527,592 4,491,147 4,891.530 S.081,794 5,417,894
2,815.080 2,955,648 3,115,307 3,300,656 3,664,175 3,757,464 4,208 601 4,371,335 4,589,463
175,994 170,247 200,651 205,501 272,246 230,010 254,352 256,359 232512
327,358 378,551 430,672 485,730 585,146 638,353 786,248 879,544 1,071,275
19,541,066 19,716.349 21,187,285 22210411 23,781,057 24,778,973 26,452,186 27,137,919 28,245,606
1,233.881 1,380,823 1472,616 1,400,456 1,414,245 1.575.420 1,706,695 1.744,847 1,844,021
2,080,201 3,569,709 3,135,612 2,978,693 2,936,151 3,082,856 3,228,032 2,620,479 3386926
358,525 604,281 795.896 747,821 772,162 59,723 806,282 958,270 1Lneei2
1,247,600 1,500,000 1,733,495 1,742,043 1,737,045 1,387,045 1,356,545 1,357,043 L617.045
843,891 1.082,681 1,134,492 850,151 1,024,189 922,670 §85.354 293,992 1078510
4,427,164 10,460,100 4,811,703 1,513,923 5,337,723 4,390,889 3,543,250 5,968,816 2.940,262
38,048,735 47152622 433882300 41,612,931 47,831,632 48110017 50,608.334 S4878.018 53715337
2,363,766 1,341,785 956,606 2,174,643 1,693,259 1,428,089 1,109,530 1,392,265 900,148
361,960 261,653 742,678 . 2,680,585 473,060 945,796 343,470 705,775

- . 5,162,057 - - - - - -

- - (3,162,057) - - - - -

- 7,059,789 . - - 1,500,060 - 4,355,060 .
2,182,370y (1,136,783) (751,262 (1,756,091y  (1,033.226) 968,841 (1,189,530 €1,392.265) (900,143),
573,356 7.566.432 548,002 417952 3340618 2,432,248 45,756 4,698,475 705,773
- - B - 1,071,989 - -
- . s - - - 1,071,989 - B
239470 5 124861 § (21821800 5§ (18219 §  (117224) § 194638 $  (200240) S (843,289 § (1,737,055
6.08% 7.03% 7.24% 6.33% 630% 5.58% 185% 1.35% 5319

slement No, 34,
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Assessed Valve and State Equalized Valoe of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiseal Years

Tabhie 6

Assessed

Total Total Value as 2

Real Property Less Taxable Direct State Percentage

Years Residential Commercial Personal Tax Exempt Assessed Tax Equalized of Equalized

ended Property Property Property Real Property Value (1) Rate Value {2) Value

June 30, 2000 $ 565,271,300 & 248,883.400 3 S4962,840 § 60,459,600 5 808,657,540 $ 2040 $ §18,850,000 98.8%
June 30, 2001 583,769,600 234,235,800 604332,350 59,645,960 833,691,830 21.00 892,000,000 94.0%
Tupe 30, 2002 GEE 135,700 263,357,800 59,380,400 59,643,900 874,228,000 21.95 1,011,250,000 86.5%:
June 30, 2003 626,598,500 271,213,500 61,900,300 62,347,800 897,364,500 22,70 3,155,650006 717%
June 30, 2604 861,989,300 283,046,608 62,688,800 73,234,208 §,136,489.500 1870 1.316,350,000 86T %
June 30, 2005 1,146,238,600 350,740,260 64,187,600 ¥2,363,800 463,822,600 15.50 1,553,400,000 94.6%
Tune 39, 2006 1,395,948,300 470,733,500 66,373,500 143,289,500 1,789,755 ,800 12.96 1,805,400,0600 99.1%
Fune 3, 2007 1,528,803,360 436,630,300 74,136,908 129,638,200 1,929,952,500 1273 1.987,350,660 9717
Tune 30, 2068 [,350,873,158 442,623,102 76,748,500 L34 287,860 1,535 656,800 1332 2,170,330,600 Y1.O9%
June 30, 2003 1,615,303,700 486,006,360 78671900 128,498,900 2,051,483,000 13.42 2,121,100,000 96.7%

(1) Saco Assessing Office

(2} State of Maine, Bureau of Taxation
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Table 7

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Property Tax Rates - All Birect and Overlapping
Governments (Per $1,009 of Assessed Value)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Direct Overlapping
Fiscal Year Municipal School County Total
Ended Tax Rate Tax Rate Tux Rate Tax Rate
June 30, 2000 $ 8.26 § 11.69 § 045 8 20.40
June 30, 2001 8.89 11.67 0.44 21.00
June 30, 2002 9.62 11.97 0.36 21.95
June 30, 2003 8.97 12.85 0.88 22.70
June 30, 2004 (1) 7.01 11.02 0.67 18.70
June 30, 2005 5.61 9.76 0.53 15.90
June 30, 2006 4.53 7.91 0.52 12.96
Jure 39, 2007 498 7.29 (.46 12.73
June 30, 2008 5.10 774 0.48 13.32
June 30, 2009 542 7.71 0.29 13.42

Source: Saco Assessing Office

(1) City began valuation adjustments 1o bring values to 95 % of state equalized value by 2006.
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Table §

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2609 2800
Percentage Percentage
Current year of Total Current year of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

General Dynamics Armament Systems $ 31,008,160 1 1.51% $ 28,099,400 1 3.69%
Ferry Road Association 17,801,000 2 0.87%
Central Maine Power Co. 16,338,700 3 0.80% 10,300,000 2 1.35%
Cormier Land Company/ DALCOR (Funtawn) 13,709,500 4 0.67% 9,003,500 3 1.18%
Biddeford & Saco Water Co. 12,569,348 5 0.61% 7,555,200 4 0.99%
EBFL. Energy Maine Hydro LLC 11,935,800 6 (.58
Saco & Biddeford Savings Institution 10,859,400 7 (.53% 1,816,300 10 0,245
Shaw's Supermarket 16,710,200 8 (.52%
Hannaford Brothers Co. ©,420,300 9 0.46% 3,558,600 6 0.52%
Saco Valley LLC 8,807,100 10 0.43%
Grey M & Joseph D Emmons Trustees 6,360,500 5 0.84%
James E. Clair Sr. 3,690,700 7 0.48%
Ledgewood Terrace 2,292,300 8 0.30%
Academy Place 2,262,500 9 0.30%

Total Principal Taxpayers 6.98% 9.89%

All Other Taxpayers 93.02% 0119

Scurce: Saco Assessing Office
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table ¢

Collected within the Collections Total Collections
Total Tax Fiscal Year of the Levy in to Date
Fiscal Year Levy for Percentage Subsequent Percentage
Ended Fiscal Year (1) Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
June 30, 2000 $ 16532228 § 15,689,497 94.90% $ 836,091 16,525,588 99.96%
Juge 30, 2001 17,674,815 17,087,815 96.68% 571,677 17,665,492 99.95%
June 30, 2002 19;189',3(}5 18,601,105 96.93% 567,997 19,169,102 99.89%
Tune 30, 2003 20,370,183 19,742,902 96.92% 619,093 20,361,995 59.96%
Tune 30, 2004 21,329,954 20,518,814 96.20% 784,808 21,303,622 99.88%
June 30, 2005 23,434,356 22,682,803 96.79% 542,682 23,225,485 99.11%
Tune 30, 2006 23,266,389 22,647,952 97.34% 580,890 23,228,842 69.84%
June 30, 2007 24,607,762 24,054,072 97.75% 366,508 24,420,580 99.24%
June 30, 2008 20,589,343 25,729,582 96.77% 499,330 26,228,912 98.64%
Ture 30, 2009 27,537,071 26,583,594 96.54% - 26,583,594 06.54%

(1) Tax commitment plus supplemental taxes assessed during the fiscal year.
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Table 18

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
General General © Total Percentage
Fiscal Year Obligation Capital Obligation Capital Primary of Personal Per

ended Debt Leases Debt Leases Government  Income (1) Capita (1)
June 30, 2000 $ 14,087,000 $ 406,597 § 4,500,000 $ - & 18,993,597 5249 $ 1,216
June 30, 2001 12,735,600 588,489 4,240,000 - 17,563,489 4.16% 1,009
June 30, 2002 18,504,789 651,260 3,980,000 - 23,226,049 3.51% 1,342
June 30, 2003 17,235,867 1,012,490 3,720,000 - 21,968,357 4.97% 1,246
Tune 30, 2004 15,846,323 750,062 3,367,500 - 19,963,885 4.52% 1,142
June 30, 2005 14,461,778 3,449,932 3,015,000 - 20926710 4.74% 1244
June 30, 2006 14,574,733 3,197,961 2,665,000 - 20,437,694 4.63% 1,215
June 30, 2007 13,172,688 3,359,272 2,320,000 - 18,851,960 4.27% 1,121
June 30, 2008 16,130,643 2,808,019 1,975,000 - 20,913,662 4.73% 1,243
June 30, 2009 14,513,598 2,518,991 1,630,000 - 18,662,589 4.22% 1,109

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the
financial statements.

(1} - See the Schedule of Demograpiic and Economic Statistics on page 118 for
personal income and population data.
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Table 11

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

State
General Assessed
Fiscal Obligation Value of Per

Year Debt Property (1) Capita (2)

2000 3 18,587,000 227% $ 1,216
2001 16,975,000 1.90% 1,009
2002 22,574,789 2.23% 1,342
2003 20,955,867 1.81% 1,246
2004 19,213,823 1.47% 1,142
2005 17,476,778 1.47% 1,039
2006 17,239,733 0.95% 1,025
2007 15,492,688 0.78% 921
2008 18,105,643 0.91% 1,076
2009 16,143,598 0.76% 960

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the
notes to the financial statements.

(1) - See the schedule of Assessed Value and State Equalized Value of
Taxable Property on page 110 for property value data.

(2} - Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographics and
Economic Statistics on page 118.
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Tabie 12

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
General Obligation Bonds

As of June 30, 2009
Net general
obligation Percentage Amount
bonded debt applicable to  applicable fo
Jurisdiction outstanding government government
Direct:
City of Saco g 14,513,598 100.00% $ 14,513,598
Overlapping debt:
York County 13,485,955 6.88% 928,232
3 27,999,553 $ 15,441,830
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Table 13

CITY OF SACO, MAINE
Statatory Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
In Accordance with 30 MRSA, Section 5061 as Amended

Total net debt

applicable to limit
Fiscal Total net debt Legal Debt as a percentage
Year Debt Limit applicable to limit Margin of debt limit
2000 & 122,827,300.00 3 18,993,597.00 § 103,833,903.00 15.46%
2001 133,800,000 17,563,489 116,236,511 13.13%
2002 151,687,500 23,220,049 128,461,451 15.31%
2003 173,347,500 21,968,357 151,379,143 12.67%
2004 196,552,500 19,963,885 176,588,615 10.16%
2005 233,010,000 20,926,710 212,083,290 8.98%:
2006 270,810,000 20,437,694 250,372,306 7.55%
2007 208,132,500 18,851,960 279,280.540 6.32%
2008 325,552,500 20,913,662 304,638,838 6.42%
2009 318,165,000 18,662,589 299,502,411 587%
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal year 2009
Percent of
Qutstanding state assessed value Allowable
bonds and leases $2,121,160,600 Amount Margin
For school purposes $ 5,369,088 10.00% $ 212,110,600 § 206,740,912
For waste water
treatment plant 1,630,000 7.50% 159,082,500 157,452,500
For municipal 11,663,501 7.50% 156,082,500 147,418,999
Total $ 18,662,589 15.00% $ 318,165,600 $ 299,502,411
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Tabhle 14

Per
Capita

Fiscal Personal Personal Median School Unemployment
Year Population (1) Income (1) Income (1) Age (D) . Enrollment (2) Rate (3)
2000 15,280 § 362,258,240 § 23,708 335 2,808 1.3%
2001 16,822 421,862,116 25,678 37.2 2,813 2.0%
2002 16,822 421,862,116 25,078 37.2 2,816 2.6%
2003 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 372 2.866 2.5%
2004 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 372 2,851 3.6%
2005 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 372 2,776 4.0%
2606 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 372 2,823 31%
2007 16,822 441,863 474 26,267 372 2,795 32%
2008 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 372 2,801 4.3%
2009 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 372 2,878 8.1%

(1) - U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census (1990 and 2000)

(2) - Maine Department of Education. Figures are based on April 1 enroliment

(3) - Maine Department of Labor
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CITY OF SACQO, MAINE
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Table 158

2008 1599
Percentage Percentage
of Saco's of Saco's
Employer Employees Rank Labor Force Employees Rank Labor Force
Swectser Children's Services 479 ] 5.19% 187 4 2.02%
Saco School Department 256 2 3.14% 220 3 2.38%
Hannaford Brothers 250 3 2.71% 160 6 1.73%
Wood Structures, Inc, 208 4 2.25%
General Dynamics 183 5 1.98% 425 1 4.60%
Visiting Nurses Association 178 6 1.93% 232 2 2.51%
City of Saco 169.5 7 1.84% 138 7 1.45%
Shaw's Supermarkets 142 8 1.54% 170 5 1.84%
Thomton Academy 132 9 1.43% 116 8 1.19%
Saco & Biddeford Savings 99 16 1.07%
Holman Cooking Hguipment 75 9 0.81%
Lynn-Flex 75 10 0.81%

Source: Maine Department of Labor and U.S. Department of Labor

Tune 30, 2008 is the most recent data available.
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function

Last Fen Fiscal Years

Table 16

Ffunction:
General Goverament
Public Safety
Police
Fire
Public Works
Parks & Recreation

‘Total General Fund
Waste Water Treatment Plant

Total Enterprise Fund

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 3¢

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2608 2406 2007 2008 2009
22 22.5 23.5 25 23.5 26 26.5 26 26 26.5
39 41 46 a6 4 46 47 47 46 46
28 28 28 32 36 38 36 36 36 3
29 315 325 3325 33.75 34.75 3425 34,25 34,25 316

3 3 G 675 6.5 6,75 625 8.25 8.25 9
123 128 136 143 148 149.5 150 151.5 150.5 149.1
8.5 9.5 i2.5 12.5 13 13 i4 14 13 12.3
9.5 8.5 12.5 12.5 13 13 14 14 13 12.3
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 17

Function
General Government
Building permits
Single family
Condos
Commercial
Total nurnber permits issved
Poblic Safety
Potice
Nusnber of cails for service
Number of waffic stops
Number of traffic summens issued
Number of warnings issued
Numiber of traffic refated arvests
Number of noa-traffic related arrests & summons
Namber of parking tickets isseed
Fire
Number of calls for service
Number of inspections conducted
Ambulance
Number of calls for service
Public Works
Number of roads maintained
Lane miles of reads maintained
Acres of public area maintained

o
<
—
==

|

a0t avail
not avail
not avail
not avail
not avail
not avail

not avail

ot avail
not avail

not avail
368

247
346

2001

103
G
82
365

24,896
8,126
1,461
5,102

191
780
466

2,181
225

1,735
370

248
50

209

1)

1,868

2214

372
230
354

2003

25,571
8,622
2,469
5,618

245
817
1,218

1,928
250

21,574
7,876
1,766
5,927

183

1,913

378
253
364

32
=
Ly

26,054
8,497
2,213
5,908

218
465
567

668
320

The informatien not available ts withia the years before the City began to prepare a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The

in this ma

ner prior to that time.
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L
=
=

25,644
6,681
1,942
4,548

273
952
913

527
311

1,846

e

384
237
379

2007

25,221
5,636
1,258
3,998

176
559
309

685
348

2,152
384

260
384

2
frd
(e]

|

25470
6,103
1,733
4,541

150

ata was therefors not accumulated

2009

26,636
5,962
1,644
4,138

160
484
418

661
270

2,807
386

262
404



CITY OF SACO, MAINE

Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Ten Fiseal Years

Table 18

Function
Public Safety
Palice
Stations
Patrol Units
Fire
Stations
Public Works
Street lights
Traffic signals
Recreation
Parks
Park acreage
Tennis and hasketball courts

Sources: Various City depariments,

2068

1643
146

0
100

2001

1683
146

10
160
6

2002 2003 2004
1 1 i

o G

3 3 3
1726 1766 1791
147 147 148
10 10 14
100 100 100
G 6 8

Nete: No capital asset indicators are available for the general government function,

124

G

3

1804
148

10
100
G

2006

L

10
100

1842
148

10
100

b2
>
7]

2

1842
148

160

[}

1842
148

135
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